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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of China Jicheng Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present our annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2017.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale
of POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and umbrella parts such as
plastic cloth and shaft. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Group’s revenue decreased to approximately RMB538 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 10.9% in comparison
to that of 2016, while profit attributable to owner of the Company
decreased to approximately RMB4 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 42.4% as compared to that of 2016. The Directors
do not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2017.

The revenue of the Group’s POE umbrellas products decreased
by approximately RMB60 million, or 17.9%, from approximately
RMB336 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to
approximately RMB276 million for the year ended 31 December
2017.

The revenue of the Group’s nylon umbrellas products decreased
by approximately RMB30 million, or 14.9%, from approximately
RMB201 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to
approximately RMB171 million for the year ended 31 December
2017.

The revenue of the Group’s umbrella parts products increased by
approximately RMB24 million, or 36.3%, from approximately RMB67
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to approximately
RMB91 million for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Our principal objectives are to maintain and strengthen our position
as a leading umbrella manufacturer focused in Japan market and
on our own branded umbrella products in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) market, and increase our market share in existing
markets such as Hong Kong, Cambodia and South Korea.

Looking ahead, the Group will shift business focus from developing
upstream manufacturing to downstream distribution network and
brand building so as to facilitate promotion of the Group’s branded
umbrellas which command higher margins and create higher values
as well as bringing better return to our shareholders. To diversify its
business and explore potential business opportunities, the Group is
exploring and developing business opportunities and projects.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to thank all the
colleagues for their diligence, dedication, loyalty and integrity. | would
also like to thank all the shareholders, customers, bankers and other
business associates for their trust and support.

Huang Weniji
Chairman

Fujian Province, the PRC, 28 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFNWED T

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and umbrella parts such as plastic
cloth and shaft. The Group manufactures products at the production
site located in Dongshi Town and Yonghe Town of Jinjiang City in
Fujian Province of the PRC.

The Group principally sell POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and
umbrella parts on export basis to the Group’s overseas customers
which accounted for approximately 79.4% of the Group’s total
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017. The Group exported
its POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and umbrella parts to markets
such as Japan, Hong Kong, South Korea, Taiwan, Spain and
Cambodia. The Group’s overseas customers would usually provide
the Group with their design and specification. The Group’s sales
personnel would closely communicate with the Group’s customers.
Depending on the specific needs of these overseas customers, the
Group’s sales personnel would put forward the Group’s suggestions
for modifications to design and specification from its research and
development staff to the Group’s customers for their consideration.
When customers decide on the final design and specification, the
Group would make samples and provide to the Group’s customers
for approval.

For domestic market, the Group sold its POE umbrellas, nylon
umbrellas and umbrella parts to the Group’s customers in the
PRC which accounted for approximately 20.6% of the Group’s
total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017. The Group’s
domestic customers would usually place orders with the Group from
selection of its existing POE umbrellas and nylon umbrellas products
which are all designed by its research and development team. The
Group also sell some of its POE umbrellas and nylon umbrellas
under the Group’s Jicheng (£ /%) brand through sales to our
non-trading customers such as supermarkets.

The Group also manufactured umbrella parts as an ancillary products
mainly for the Group’s existing customers, both overseas and
domestic customers, some of which also purchased POE umbrellas
and nylon umbrellas from the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group’s new business strategy is to shift business focus from
developing upstream manufacturing to downstream distribution
network and brand building so as to facilitate promotion of the
Group’s branded umbrellas which command higher margins.

To diversify its business and explore potential business opportunities,
the Group is exploring and developing business opportunities and
projects.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

The revenue decreased from approximately RMB604 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016 to approximately RMB538 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017, representing a decrease of
approximately 10.9%. The decrease in revenue from the PRC was
primarily due to decreased demand for the POE umbrellas and nylon
umbrellas compared to the previous year. The decrease in revenue
was primarily due to the decrease in sales volume affected by poor
market situation in both PRC and export markets.

COST OF SALES

The cost of sales decreased from approximately RMB530 million for
the year ended 31 December 2016 to approximately RMB457 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017, representing a decrease of
approximately 13.7%. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
corresponding decrease in direct materials costs and direct labour
costs to cope with the Group’s decrease in revenue for the same
period and there is no noncash provision for the obsolete inventories
during the year (2016: approximately RMB25 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFNWED T

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS MARGIN

As a result of the foregoing, the gross profit increased by
approximately RMB7 million, or 9.7%, from approximately RMB74
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to approximately
RMB81 million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The gross
profit margin increased from approximately 12.2% for the year
ended 31 December 2016 to approximately 15.0% for the year
ended 31 December 2017. This was mainly due to there is no
noncash provision for the obsolete inventories during the year (2016:
approximately RMB25 million).

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

The other income and gains decreased by approximately RMB3
million, or 40.6%, from approximately RMB8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016 to approximately RMB5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017. The decrease was mainly due to the
combined effect of (i) no net exchange gain recorded during the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB4 million), (i) the decrease
of government grants and (jii) the increase of imputed interest on
promissory notes receivables.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses remained stable at approximately
RMB13 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2017.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses increased by approximately RMB10 million,
or 20.4%, from approximately RMB47 million for the year ended
31 December 2016 to approximately RMB57 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The increase in administrative expenses
was mainly due to the net exchange loss of approximately RMB8
million arising from the appreciation of Renminbi against United
States dollars and Japanese Yen during the year ended 31
December 2017 and the equity-settled share-based payment of
approximately RMB6 million for the share options granted by the
Company to employees and consultants of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2017 as compared to previous year (2016:
Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs increased by approximately RMB2 million, or
28.4%, from approximately RMB7 million for the year ended
31 December 2016 to approximately RMB9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The increase in finance cost was mainly
due to the higher average borrowing level for the period.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Income tax expense decreased by approximately RMB4 million,
or 57.0%, from approximately RMB7 million for the year ended
31 December 2016 to approximately RMB3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017, which was primarily due to decrease in
the Group’s profit before tax.

The effective tax rate decreased from approximately 54.7% for the
year ended 31 December 2016 to approximately 47.4% for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

As a result for the foregoing factors, profit for the year decreased by
approximately RMB3 million, or 42.4%, from approximately RMB6
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to approximately
RMB4 million for the year ended 31 December 2017.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s bank balances and cash
(including restricted bank deposits of approximately RMB23 million
(2016: approximately RMB31 million)) amounted to approximately
RMB90 million (2016: approximately RMB169 million), and
short-term bank borrowings amounted to RMB163 million (2016:
approximately RMB172 million). The annual interest rates of loans
ranged from 4.6% to 6.0%.

The Group’s current ratio increased from approximately 1.9
times as at 31 December 2016 to approximately 2.3 times as at
31 December 2017, which was calculated based on the total current
assets divided by the total current liabilities. As at 31 December
2017, the gearing ratio was approximately 50% (2016: approximately
60%), which was calculated based on the interest-bearing liabilities
as a percentage of the total equity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFNWED T

INVENTORIES

As at 31 December 2017, the inventories was approximately
RMB205 million (2016: approximately RMB180 million). The inventory
turnover days were increased from approximately 99 days in 2016
to approximately 154 days in 2017, which was calculated based
on the average of the beginning and ending balance of inventories
for the year divided by cost of sales for the year, and multiplied by
365 days. This was mainly due to increase in purchasing activities
towards the end of the reporting period.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2017, the trade receivables were approximately
RMB154 million (2016: approximately RMB106 million). The Group
generally allows an average credit period of 30 to 150 days to its
trade customers. The average trade receivables turnover day was
increased from approximately 48 days in 2016 to approximately 88
days in 2017, which was calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending trade receivable balances for the year divided
by revenue for the year and multiplied by 365 days. This was mainly
due to we have extended credit period for those long term business
relationships and good settlement history customers suffering
intense market competitions.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

As at 31 December 2017, the trade and bills payables were
approximately RMB69 million (2016: approximately RMB101 million).
The Group’s suppliers typically grant us a credit terms ranging
from 30 days to 120 days. The average trade and bills payables
turnover days were increased from approximately 57 days in 2016
to approximately 67 days in 2017, which was calculated based
on the average of the beginning and ending of trade and bills
payable balance of the year divided by cost of sales of the year and
multiplied by 365 days. This is mainly due to an increase in purchase
of raw materials at the end of 2017.

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
PESERIERAR AR

78

RZE—+FE+-_A=1+—8B FEAHA
REE205BE L (ZE—RF: HARK1807
) FEEAEBEAHABR-ZT —NF 2499
AEME T —+F2H1548 B AFE
FNREFERTFEEHB 2 FHERAFTEHE
A BEASGSHFTE e F ERNBRAMRE
HRR BB E BN N AT BN ©

85 BWRE

RZE—+E+-_A=1+—H BHENKXK
AN ARBIBAEBITL(ZE—XRFHA
RE1EE L) AEE—METFTEESE
F30E1508 2 FHEEH - FHE UK
BAEBAHA T NFrH48BENE
T+ F2H88H ERAFEFYRER
BoRWFEEH T FHERAFEREH
FLABGsHFTH EEXEZEHREMHECELR
HEBERALERCERTEAZ TS
BENERFEREESATR

EZRNNREREMNRE

RZE—+FE+-_A=+—H BHENXK
BHEERNEZEZEANARBOEEL(ZE
—NEHAREI01EEL) - AEEHRER
— IR T AREBE N FI0EE1208 2 EEH -
FHESEMNREBRENZEBE AShm—
T RNFEZHTEENE T —tF 2467
A EBRAFEFYERFARESESRER
EREREHR T FHERAFEHEN AT
FLABGSHFTH BEEXTEHR T —LFFR
AR ER BB 1 0 o



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The business of the Group is subject to numerous risks and
uncertainties. The following is a summary of some of the principal
risks and uncertainties affecting the Group’s business:

- The Group’s business, financial condition and results of
operations may be affected by the loss of key customers.

It is important for the Group to maintain close and mutually
beneficial relationships with the Group’s key overseas and
domestic customers. The Group’s revenue is also subject
to the Group’s customers’ business, product quality, sales
strategy, industry conditions and the overall economic market
environments. Any significant reduction of sales to or loss
of any of the Group’s key customers could materially and
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

- The Group may be subject to certain risks, such as political
and economic instability and fluctuations in currency rates
of foreign currencies, associated with selling our umbrella
products to Japan, the PRC and other overseas customers.

Any change in market demand levels for the Group’s umbrella
products in Japan, the PRC and in the Group’s other export
destinations may have a significant effect on the Group’s
business, financial condition and results of operations. In
particular, the Group is affected by changes in the economic
condition of Japan, a major destination of our products, and
the PRC.

As the Group’s sales are primarily made in US dollar, RMB and
Japanese Yen whereas the Group’s purchases of materials
and payment of wages and salaries to the PRC workers are
in RMB and US dollar, the Group is exposed to exchange rate
risk. In addition, the Group is exposed to the risks associated
with the currency conversion and exchange rate system in the
PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFNWED T

- Fluctuations in prices of raw materials or unstable supply of
raw materials could negatively impact our operations and may
adversely affect our profitability.

The prices of most of the Group’s raw materials generally
follow the price trends of, and vary with, market conditions.
Supplies of these raw materials may also be subject to a
variety of factors that are beyond our control, including but not
limited to market shortages, suppliers’ business interruptions,
government control, weather conditions and overall economic
conditions, all of which may have an impact on their respective
market prices from time to time.

- The Group may experience a shortage of labour or our labour
costs may continue to increase.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no material capital
commitment (2016: Nil). As at 31 December 2017, the Group did
not have any significant contingent liabilities (2016: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s leasehold land and buildings
with a carrying amounts of approximately RMB97 million (2016:
approximately RMB101 million) and bank deposits with a carrying
amounts of approximately RMB23 million (2016: approximately
RMB31 million) were pledged to banks for bank borrowings.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed a total of 1,822
employees (2016: 1,738 employees). The emolument policy of the
employees of the Group was set up by the Board based on their
experience, qualifications and competence. Other employees’
benefits include contributions to statutory mandatory provident
funds, and social insurance together with housing provident funds to
its employees in Hong Kong and the PRC respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on the Listing Date with net proceeds received by
the Company from the global offering in the amount of approximately
HK$134.2 million (equivalent to approximately RMB106.0 million)
after deducting underwriting commissions and all related expenses.
As disclosed in the announcement of the Company published
on 30 December 2016, the Board has resolved to reallocate the
unutilised amount of approximately RMB61.4 million to the following
two areas:

1) approximately RMB36.9 million out of the unutilised net
proceeds for buying new brand-names and/or licensing
rights of umbrella products from Southeast Asian countries
to increase its market shares in those countries as well as
investing in a trading company comprising umbrella and other
products.

2)  toincrease the allocation for approximately RMB24.5 million for
brand awareness promotions and advertising expenses both in
domestic and overseas markets.

The Board is of the view that such re-allocation of unutilised net
proceeds is in line with the Group’s new business strategy to
shift business focus from developing upstream manufacturing to
downstream distribution network and brand building to facilitate
promotion of the Group’s branded umbrellas which command higher
margins.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFNWED T

As at 31 December 2017, the net proceeds had been utlised as R -_ZE—+F+-A=+—8 FEHRIEZF
follows: BEREATHE:

Utilised amount up to  Unutilised amount up

Use of Net Proceeds FSREFEAR Revised allocation 31 December 2017 to 31 December 2017
HE-Z—tF BE-Z-t#%

+=-—B=+—-HE +=B=+—-8%

RIBIT D BRALE BHESHE
RMB (million) RMB (million) RMB (million)
AR®EBEER AR®BEER ARBEER
(Approximately)
(#4)

Increasing our production capacity by & B i H T

constructing a factory NiREAEEERE 24.5 24.5 -
Paying the outstanding of the TRBBEERRTK

consideration in relation to the MOERmREFT L

construction and completion of the REZRZHHIE

new 10-storey office building 3.1 3.1 -
Strengthen our technical expertise W REE 2 BIiTER

and know-how to ensure continuous & A LA FE (R 4548

improvement of our products WEAEEER 37 3.7 -
Additional working capital and BINEEE S R EAM

other general corporate purposes —RARAR 10.6 10.6 -
Further expansion of our branded IN3R & 855 B A

umbrellas by intensifying our REA KBTS

marketing activities to promote our RRASEmE

brand awareness both in the HMEEME—F

domestic and overseas HEASERERS 27.2 32 24.0
Buying new brand-names and investing 5 B ¥ @2 278 &

in a trading company KE—HEH AT 36.9 - 36.9
Total Bt 106.0 451 60.9
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group principal objectives are to maintain and strengthen
its position as a leading umbrella manufacturer focused in Japan
market and its own branded umbrella products in the PRC market,
and increase its market share in the existing markets such as Hong
Kong, Cambodia and South Korea.

Looking ahead, the Group will shift business focus from developing
upstream manufacturing to downstream distribution network and
brand building so as to facilitate promotion of the Group’s branded
umbrellas which command higher margins and create higher values
as well as bringing better return to our shareholders. To diversify its
business and explore potential business opportunities, the Group is
exploring and developing business opportunities and projects.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CRERBE

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of
corporate governance and has steered its development and
protected the interests of its shareholders in an enlightened and
open manner. The Board comprises four executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The Company has
adopted and complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules since the
Listing Date with the following deviations:

Under paragraph A.2.1 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer of an issuer should
be separated and should not be performed by the same person.
Mr. Huang is currently the Chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer who is primarily responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business. The Directors consider that
vesting the roles of the Chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer in the same person facilitates the execution of the Group’s
business strategies and decision making, and maximizes the
effectiveness of the Group’s operation. The Directors also believe
that the presence of three independent non-executive Directors
provides added independence to our Board. The Directors will
review the structure from time to time and consider an adjustment
should it become appropriate.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors should attend general meeting of the Company. Mr. Tso
Sze Wai, Mr. Yang Xuetai and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie, being the
independent non-executive Directors, did not attend the Company’s
annual general meeting held on 31 May 2017 due to their other
business engagements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY THE
DIRECTORS

The Directors have adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for
Directors in dealing in the Company’s securities. Specific enquiries
have been made to all Directors and all Directors have confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard of dealings
as set out in the Model Code during the year.

BOARD OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board has established three
Board committees, being the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (each a “Board
Committee” and collectively the “Board Committees”), to oversee
different areas of the Company’s affairs.

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors, namely
Mr. Huang Wenji, Mr. Yang Guang, Mr. Lin Zhengshuang and Mr.
Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Tso Sze Wai, Mr. Yang Xuetai and Ms. Lee Kit
Ying, Winnie.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CRERBE

There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship amongst Directors. Their biographical details and (where
applicable) their family relationships are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages
39 to 41 in the annual report. A list of the Directors identifying their
role and functions and whether they are independent non-executive
Directors are available on the Company’s website.

The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies,
monitors and evaluates its operating and financial performance
and reviews the corporate governance standard of the Group. It
also decides on matters such as annual and interim results, major
transactions, director appointments or re-appointments, investment
policy, dividend and accounting policies. The Board has delegated
the authority and responsibility for implementing its business
strategies and managing the daily operations of the Group’s
businesses to the executive Directors and members of senior
management. The functions and power that are so delegated are
reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices on corporate governance
and legal and regulatory compliance of the Group, and the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management. The Board also reviews the disclosures in the
Corporate Governance Report to ensure compliance.

All Board members have separate and independent access to
the Group’s senior management to fuffill their duties. Independent
professional advice can be sought to assist the relevant Directors to
discharge their duties at the Group’s expense upon their request.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their
first appointment, the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organisation. These
interests are updated on an annual basis and when necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT MEETINGS EEHESEEBER

The attendance of the Directors at the general meetings of the #HE_-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE =
Company, meetings of the Board, the Audit Committee, the ZBLXFEARFIBREAS BEESEH BEXRZE
& A 2 [E

Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee duringthe E & HEZE e RiEZZE e 2B NE
year ended 31 December 2017 are set out below: FIGAR ¢

Annual  Extraordinary Audit  Remuneration Nomination
general general Board committee committee committee

meeting meeting meetings meetings meetings meetings
BRR BRR BRZEE® FMZEEE REEZEE
AEXE KAKE EZegd =E =E =E

(number of mestings attended/number of meetings held during respective director’s tenure)
(REZARBEEESINU/ BIERAR)

Executive Directors HiTES

Mr. Huang Wenji BENERE 11 11 8/8 NATERE NATEAR NATHEA
Mr. Yang Guang Bk 0/ 0/ 88 NATER NATER NATEA
Mr. Lin Zhenshuang WEEEE 0/1 0/1 88  NATEA NATEA NATEA
Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth EREEE 0/1 0/1 88 NATEA NATHEA NATER

Independent Non-executive Directors ~ B JEH1TEE

Mr. Tso Sze Wai ERMELE 0N 0N 8/8 2/2 11 11

Mr. Yang Xuetai BEREE 0/1 0/1 8/8 2/2 il N

Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie FEETLT 01 01 8/8 2/2 11 11
DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANGE EERERABER

Appropriate insurance coverage has been arranged in respect AARICHMEEZR SR A B AL EH 2 &
of potential legal actions against the Directors and officers of the  SEARTTENVE L = IR HE -
Company.
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CRERBE

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to Code provision A.6.5, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. All the Directors also
understand the importance of continuous professional development
and are committed to participating in any suitable training or relevant
materials reading in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company has received from each Director a confirmation
of their participation in continuous professional development by
attending training course or reading relevant materials on the topics
related to corporate governance and regulations.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to provide
independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving adequate
control and balances for the Group to protect the overall interests of
the shareholders and the Group. They serve actively on the Board
and its committees to provide their independent and objective views.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board. One
of the independent non-executive Directors has the appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

Each independent non-executive Director has submitted confirmation
of his/her independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmations,
the Company considers that all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.
Each Board Committee has its defined and written terms of
reference approved by the Board covering its duties, powers and
functions. Their terms of reference are available on the Company’s
website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties, including access to management or
professional advice if considered necessary.

U]

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 23 January
2015 with specific written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are
to assist the Board by providing an independent view on the
effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control
and risk management systems of the Group, overseeing the
audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities
as assigned by the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Tso Sze Wai (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Ms. Lee
Kit Ying, Winnie and Mr. Yang Xuetai.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit
Committee held two meetings to review the annual and
interim results of the Group and make recommendations to
the Board and the management in respect of the Group's
financial reporting and internal control procedures. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee has
also reviewed, with the management and the Company’s
auditors, the Group’s significant internal controls and financial
matters in accordance with the Audit Committee’s written
terms of reference and made relevant recommendations
to the Board. The Audit Committee’s review covered the
audit scope and findings, external auditors’ independence
and performance, the Group’s accounting principles and
practices, the Listing Rules and statutory compliance,
connected transactions, internal controls, risk management,
financial reporting matters (including the interim and annual
financial reports for the Board’s approval) and the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function as well
as their training programmes and budget. It also reviewed this
Corporate Governance Report and an internal control review
report on the Company prepared by an independent advisor.
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(In)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Remuneration Committee on
23 January 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the remuneration
committee include making recommendations to the Board
on the policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management, reviewing the terms of remuneration packages,
determining the award of bonuses and considering the grant
of options under the share option scheme of the Company. As
at the date of this annual report, the remuneration committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie (Chairperson of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Tso Sze Wai and Mr. Yang Xuetai.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to review the remuneration
policy, remuneration packages of the Directors and the
senior management in accordance with the Remuneration
Committee’s written terms of reference.

Particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant
to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 13 to
the financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(i) NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee on
23 January 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The nomination committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yang Xuetai
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Tso Sze Wai
and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie. The principal responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee are to review the composition
of the Board, including its structure, size and diversity at
least annually to ensure that it has a balance of expertise,
skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of the
business of the Group. It is also responsible to consider and
recommend to the Board suitably qualified persons to become
a member of the Board, monitor the succession planning
of Directors and assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee will also
give consideration to the Board Diversity Policy (as defined
below) when identifying suitably qualified candidates to
become members of the Board, and the Board will review the
Board Diversity Policy (as defined below), so as to develop and
review measurable objectives for the implementing the Board
Diversity Policy (as defined below) and to monitor the progress
on achieving these objectives.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, one meetings was
held by the Nomination Committee to, among other things,
review the structure, size and composition of the board, assess
the independence of each of the independent non-executive
Directors, formulate the board diversity policy and recommend
to the board for approval. The Nomination Committee reviewed
the board diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness and
considered the Group achieved the policy since its adoption.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by the
Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the
Board on 23 January 2015 in compliance with provision D.3.1 of the
CG Code, which include (a) to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance; (b) to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management of the Group; (c) to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and relevant disclosure
in the corporate governance report of the annual report of the
Company.

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

Regular board meetings are held at quarterly intervals with additional
meetings convened as and when necessary to discuss the overall
strategic directions, the Group’s operations, financial performance,
and to approve interim and annual results and other significant
matters. For regular meetings, Board members are given at least
14 days prior notice and agenda with supporting papers are sent to
Directors not less than 3 days before the relevant meeting is held.
Directors may propose to the Chairman or the Company Secretary
to include matters in the agenda for regular board meetings.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests, if
any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board
at board meetings and abstain from voting in favour of the related
board resolutions as appropriate.

Minutes of meetings of the Board and Board Committees are
kept by the Company Secretary in sufficient details of the matters
considered and decisions reached, including dissenting views
expressed, and are open for inspection on reasonable notice by any
Director. Draft and final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comments and records respectively within a reasonable time
after the board meeting is held.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary with a view to ensuring the Board procedures are followed.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, a person
may be appointed as a Director either by the shareholders in general
meeting or by the Board. Any Directors appointed by the Board as
additional Directors or to fill casual vacancies shall hold office until
the next following general meeting, and are eligible for re-election
by the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required to retire
by rotation at least once every three years at the annual general
meeting, and are eligible for re-election by the shareholders.

Mr. Yang Xuetai, being independent non-executive Director has
entered into an appointment letter with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date. Each of
Mr. Tso Sze Wai and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie have entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of one year.

Each of Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth, being an executive
Director and Mr. Yang Xuetai and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie, being
independent non-executive Directors, will be subject to retirement
and re-election at annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board adopted a board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) on 23 January 2015. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. While all Board appointments will continue to be made on
a merit basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
needs of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates will be
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Mr. Cheung Ka Shing, a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant, who is an
employee of the Company as the Company Secretary. The Company
Secretary reported to the Board from time to time. All Directors
have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary
to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed.

During the year under review, Mr. Cheung Ka Shing has taken not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training and has fulfilled
the requirement pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis.
The Audit Committee would consider the adequacy of resource,
qualifications and experience and training of staff and external
advisor of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting function.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control system to ensure adequate control in place to
safeguard the Group’s assets and stakeholder’s interest.

The Group has established risk management procedures to address
and handle the all significant risks associate with the business of the
Group. The Board would perform annual review on any significant
change of the business environment and establish procedures
to response the risks result from significant change of business
environment. The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to mitigate the potential losses of the business.
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The management would identify the risks associate with the business
of the Group by considering both internal and external factors and
events which include political, economic, technology, environmental,
social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed and prioritised
based on their relevant impact and occurrence opportunity. The
relevant risk management strategy would be applied to each type of
risks according to the assessment results, type of risk management
strategy has been listed as follow:

- Risk retention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of the
risks;

- Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so as to
avoid the risk;

- Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the risk
or allocate to different location or product or market;

- Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third party.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks. The
risk management and internal control system are design to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has engaged
an external advisory firm to undertake the internal audit function
to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk management
and internal control system of the Group. There is no significant
deficiency and weakness on the internal control system has
been identified by the external advisory firm for the year ended
31 December 2017.

The Board considered that, for the year ended 31 December 2017,
the risk management and internal control system and procedures
of the Group, covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
were reasonably effective and adequate.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND AUDIT
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Company’s financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash flows for the year and
in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The Company has selected appropriate accounting
policies and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates. The Board considers that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in business for
the foreseeable future and not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may affect the business of the
Company or cast doubts on its ability to continue as going concern.
The responsibilities of Elite Partners CPA Limited, the Company’s
external auditor, with respect to financial reporting are set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended
31 December 2017 are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the members of the senior management (other than the Directors)
whose particulars are contained in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report for
the year ended 31 December 2017 by band is set out below:
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During the year, the Group engaged external auditors to perform
audit and non-audit services amounted to approximately
RMB588,000 and RMB164,000 respectively. The non-audit
services included primarily ESG reporting advisory, internal control
consultancy and reviewing certain financial information.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has in place a policy on handling and dissemination
of inside information (“Policy”) which sets out the procedures
and internal controls for handling and dissemination of inside
information in a timely manner in such a way so as not to place
any person in a privileged dealing position and to allow time for the
market to price the listed securities of the Company with the latest
available information. This Policy also provides guidelines to staff
of the Company to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent the
Company from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements. It
also includes appropriate internal control and reporting systems to
identify and assess potential inside information. Dissemination of
inside information of the Company shall be conducted by publishing
the relevant information on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company, according to the requirements of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to, via its corporate governance structure, enable
all its shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their rights in
an informed manner and allow all shareholders to engage actively
with the Company. Under the Company’s articles of association,
the shareholder communication policy and other relevant internal
procedures of the Company, the shareholders of the Company enjoy,
among others, the following rights:

()  PARTICIPATION AT GENERAL MEETINGS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for direct communication between the Board and the
shareholders. The Company encourages the participation of
the shareholders through annual general meetings and other
general meetings where the shareholders meet and exchange
views with the Board, and to exercise their right to vote at
meetings. The Company shall arrange notices of meetings
and circulars containing details on proposed resolutions to be
sent to the shareholders no less than 20 business days before
the meeting. At general meetings, separate resolutions are
proposed on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual Directors.
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(In)

(1

ENQUIRIES AND PROPOSALS TO THE BOARD

The Company encourages shareholders to attend
shareholders’ meetings and make proposals by either directly
raising questions on both operational and governance matters
to the Board and Board Committees at the general meetings
or providing written notice of such proposals for the attention
of the Company Secretary at the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong currently situated at Room 904,
Loon Kee Building, 275 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
or via email to enquiry@jcumbrella.com.

CONVENING EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an
extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary general meetings
shall also be convened on the requisition of one or more
shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Directors or the Company
Secretary and deposited at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong currently situated at Room
904, Loon Kee Building, 275 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong
Kong, for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Directors for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Directors
fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions under the Company’s articles of
association or the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands regarding
procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings other than a proposal of a person for election
as director. Shareholders may follow the procedures set out
above to convene an extraordinary general meeting for any
business specified in such written requisition.
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The notice of annual general meeting together with the
accompanying circular setting out the relevant information as
required under the Listing Rules are sent to shareholders at
least 20 clear business days prior to the meeting. Poll voting
has been adopted for decision-making at shareholders’
meetings to ensure that each share is entitled to one vote.
Details of the poll voting procedures are set out in the circular
sent to shareholders prior to the meeting and explained at
the commencement of the meeting. Voting results are posted
on the Company’s website on the day of the annual general
meeting.

PROCEDURES FOR PROPOSING A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS
A DIRECTOR

Pursuant to the Article 113 of the articles of association of
the Company, no person other than a Director retiring at
the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless notice in writing of the intention to propose
that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by
that person of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the head office or at the registration office of the
Company. The period for lodgement of the notices required
will commerce no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting and the minimum length of the period during which
such notices to the Company may be given will be at least
seven days.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no change in
the memorandum and articles of association of the Company.
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ABOUT THE GROUP

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale
of Polyolefin Elastomers (“POE”) umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and
umbrella parts such as plastic cloth and shaft.

The Group follows a sustainable development strategy by providing
the employees with a safe and healthy working environment as well
as training and promoting supply chain policies and implementing a
set of comprehensive measures for environmental protection.

The Group consistently regard their corporate social responsibility
and a wide variety of sustainability or non-financial factors with an
objective to better understand the potential impact by the Group on
the environment and the society at large.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL
A.1 EMISSIONS

The Group’s umbrella manufacturing business closely relates to
environmental protection-one of the core values of the Group.
As a leader of Asia’s umbrella industry, the Group follows
closely the relevant laws and regulations implemented and
specific actions taken by different countries on the reduction of
greenhouse gas emission.

Violating the environmental regulations may result in temporary
suspension of production. During the year ended 31 December
2017, the Group has complied with these environmental
regulations.

Emissions management

The Group repeatedly implemented energy saving projects and
replacement of high carbon emissions as measures in order to
establish emission reduction and energy saving. The Group’s
factories during the production are completely based on ISO
14001 standard, the environmental management system.

It is the view of the Group that POE and nylon used for the
productions of their umbrella business are the most critical
environmental concerns of the Group and its stakeholders.
Further, the machineries used for their production are powered
by electricity, which will result in a certain amount of carbon
footprint. Therefore, the Group has established policies to limit
emissions from the production by ensuring the efficient use of
frequent facilities checking. The total CO, equivalent emission
direct used in the production is 6,098,563 kg.
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There is also some indirect emission, the Group used paper,
vehicle and flight during the year ended 31 December 2017
for supporting the business operation, the total CO, equivalent
emission of business trip by flight is 24,842 kg. The CO,
equivalent emission indirect used by paper used is 2,369 kg.
The NOx and PM generated by vehicle used is 781,133 g and
58,892 g respectively.

The non-hazardous waste discharged by the Group belongs
to basic household garbage and 331 tonnes of non-hazardous
waste were generated during the year ended 31 December
2017, which was fully entrusted to a garden construction
company to handle and did not create impact on environment.

USE OF RESOURCES

Energy consumption

The Group is committed to consume efficiently the resources
during production. For the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Group aims to reduce consumption through more targeted
efforts by participating in an energy conservation programme.

The Group engaged in production has taken to restrict control
of discharging waste into the air, land and water. It is the
Group’s policies to maintain the manufacture process in an
efficient and effective manner. The Group strived to mitigate
the environmental impact of its umbrella producing activities.
The total water consumption for the production is 145,151
m?3 in 2017. Also, the Group ensured waste water is properly
connected to municipal sewage system and all land waste
is send to municipal solid waste management plant during
production.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group minimizes
the materials used in the manufacturing process so as to
maximize the resource efficiency of our operations. The Group
makes a record of the amount of material used to reduce
unnecessary waste of materials. The Group uses appropriate
tools to further avoid excessive use of components and
materials in the manufacturing process.
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In 2017, the Group constantly pursued the efficient use of
resources. The Group also and rationalized planning equipment
layout and operational processes to reduce the waste of
energy and resources generated during the production
process. The total electricity consumption is 7,473,707 kWh.
And the Group produced over 17,380,000 POE umbrellas,
8,180,000 nylon umbrellas and other umbrella parts. It is the
Group’s policy to maintain the manufacture process in an
efficient and effective manner to reduce accordingly the energy
waste in the production.

This is the key for the Group to attribute to the environmental
friendly strategies. The Group is committed to perform regular
assessment in analysing data in aims for better management
in the use of resources.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Measures in reducing environmental impact

The Group has been promoting the sustainable use of natural
resources. For example, Polyvinyl Chloride (“PVC”) is relatively
cheap, easy to assemble and is durable. However, PVC
degrades very slowly, and can release toxic when being burn.
The Group has therefore been using POE to manufacture
its products. POE is an environmental friendly fabric for an
umbrella’s canopy, which is free of Azo and heavy metal
Chromium. POE is also biodegradable and recyclable and is
an environmentally friendly substitute for PVC. Also, the Group
has policies for daily inspection and maintenance in order to
maintain the facilities’ efficiency.

SOCIAL
EMPLOYMENT

Labour practices

As a labour-intensive industry, the Group’s success would
greatly rely on the effort contributed by employees of the
Group. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total
number of the employees of the Group in China was 1,822,
including 9 executives, 26 managers, 349 officers and 1,438
workers.
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The Group has adopted practices and policies of Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China ( {fh#E A R HAE
B Eh3L) ), Labour Contract Law of People’s Republic of
China ( (REARKMBELEEFE) ) and other relevant
laws. The Group had in place human resources management
system that contain specific terms to address compensation
and dismissal, working hours, rest periods and other benefits
and welfare for our staff. The Group’s employee handbook
distributed to employees also highlight important information
of policies on compensation, employee benefits, rights on
termination, business conduct and leave benefits.

HEALTH AND SAFETY
Workplace health and safety

In order to minimise workplace incidents and put the health
and safety of the staffs as the priority of productions, the
Group has established a set of staff handbooks, which
included aspects such as safety policies. Every worker was
required to follow safety instructions. During that year, the
Group has no reported incidents of non-compliance with
regulations concerning workplace health and safety.

The Group has complied with laws and regulations regarding
health and safety such as Labour Law of the People’s Republic
of China ( {1 #EAREFEILE)E) ) of occupational safety
and health and other applicable regulations to provide a safe,
healthy and comfortable working environment. Workplaces are
equipped with fire and safety facilities to prevent and control
outbreak of fire accidents. Also, the functionality of the fire
facilities has been regularly checked, for example, fire exits
were always constantly kept clear. Staff had been trained and
possess basic knowledge in using fire extinguishing equipment.
Fire drills have also been regularly conducted. There are no
injury records incurred from workplace for the year ended
31 December 2017. There are strict requirements for staff in
clothing, access of non-operational staff, and knowledge of
workplace hazards to ensure the safety of our employees.
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B.3

B.4

B.5

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Employee development and training

The Group encourages its employees to advance and
improve themselves pursuing further development. Therefore,
the Group has held various internal and external training
programmes to further develop its workforce. Regularly,
staffs would be assigned to attend training courses such as
management certificate studies, first aids training, and top-up
courses for specialized skills.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there are over
4,481 participants in total for every month’s training course.
The male to female ratio of participants is 1:1.34. Subjects
included orientation, pre-job training, on-the-job training, fire
safety, professional skill and so on. Then, company would
gather back feedback and recommendations from staffs to
further improve the quality and effectiveness of training.

LABOUR STANDARDS

Child labour and forced labour

The Group strictly complied with Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China ( (P EARKEMBEL A F
7%) ). According to the Law of the PRC on the Protection
of Minors and as stipulated by the Labour Law of the PRC in
terms of employment management, there is neither child nor
forced labour in our Group’s operation. For the year ended 31
December 2017, no employees of the Group aged under 16.
Further, there had not been any no dispute between the Group
and its teams of staff.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Supplier management

In order to maintain long term relationship with its suppliers for
ensuring stable supply, the Group establishes a comprehensive
vertical supply chain management system through supplier
screening and management and resource integration. More
than 97% of supplier located in the Mainland China and other
suppliers located in the United State, Hong Kong, Taiwan,
Japan, Singapore, Korea, Malaysia, Thailand and Saudi Arabia.
Raw materials suppliers are the major suppliers of the Group.
Thus, the Group would evaluate the performance of the major
vendors of the Group, on whether the quality of raw materials
have passed the Group’s requirement and standards. Raw
material that does not qualify will be returned to supplier.
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The quality and safety of sanitary ware is top priorities of the
Group. The Group are committed to ensure its supply chain
is operating as efficiently as possible to ensure its products
are safe and standardised. Greater emphasis is placed on the
communication and relationship with the suppliers towards
sustainable development.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Product safety and quality

The Group has put the product quality as its first priority as the
performance of the product can directly affect the relationship
with customers as well as the reputation of the business.
Therefore, the Group has already been focusing on meeting
customer expectations and delivering customer satisfaction by
introducing 1ISO 9001.

To improve the product quality management of the Group, the
Group strive to identify product quality problems earlier and
address the problems promptly. This promote the protection
of the company’s credibility and enhance the company’s
market share. As a testament of this, the company uses
“Plastic umbrella product standards and test methods” ( (%8
BaEMZER®RHTE) )and “Nylon umbrella product
standards and test methods” ( (/B B2 %k E T 1Z & K 45 5
7 7%) ) to control the quality. Quality control covers raw
materials quality control, manufacturing process quality control
and finished product quality control.

The products of the Group are subjected to the Product
Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China ( {#F#E A R
MBEE@RES%) ) which ensure the company’s responsibility
to compensate for damages done to persons or property in
case of defected products. For the year ended 31 December
2017, the Group did not have any products returned due to
safety or health problems or any complaint received from our
customers. In order to protect consumer data and privacy,
client information is kept confidentially and destroyed on a
timely basis.
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B.7

B.8

wE

ANTI-CORRUPTION

Anti-corruption and money laundering

The Group sees integrity as the key for sustainable
development of the Group. The Group strives to maintain high
standards of business integrity in its operation, the Group has
no tolerance towards any corruption, fraud, money laundering,
bribery, and extortion. During this financial year, the Group
did not have any violation of laws and regulations relevant to
the activity of the Group, such as Criminal law of the People’s
Republic of China ( (% ARZLMBEIFE) ) and the Anti-
Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic ( (R #E A R
HMERTEEFREFEE) ).

The Group also sees that a management system with
good moral integrity and anti-corruption mechanisms is the
cornerstone for sustainable and healthy development of the
Group. The Group has in place procedures to comply with
guidelines on anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist
financing. Any suspicious transactions would be notified and
reported to the relevant governing body by a responsible
officer.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

Community involvement

In order to be a good business leader, it is the Group’s
believe that it is fundamental to be a good community leader:
The Group see this as a responsibility of being a successful
company. As such, the Group believes in giving back to the
society. The Group makes effect in evaluating community
programmes that prompts the same ideology of the Group
and the Group makes substantial monetary contributions.
This year, the Group has contributed RMB1,000,000 to the
education field by donating and assisting in building local
schools through the Jinjiang Qiaosheng Secondary Education
Development Foundation.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERENEEABBEFE

DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Wenji (=325 ) , aged 49, is the Chairman of the Board.
Mr. Huang was appointed as a Director on 12 June 2014 and
re-designated as an executive Director on 25 September 2014. He
founded our Group in May 1996 and is responsible for the overall
management, strategic development and major decision-making
of our Group. Mr. Huang is a Controlling Shareholder. Mr. Huang
completed his secondary education in the PRC in July 1987.

Mr. Yang Guang (15 3%) , aged 49, was appointed as an executive
Director on 25 September 2014. He joined our Group in November
2007 as financial controller as well as secretary to the board of
directors of Fujian Jicheng Umbrella Co., Ltd. (i8R R ¥H

A A]) (“Fujian Jicheng”). Mr. Yang has been the deputy general
manager of Fujian Jicheng since November 2010, and is responsible
for supervising our Group’s production. He worked for A& 45 % 8
A% 17 B BR A &) (Daye Special Steel Co., Ltd.) as finance officer from
November 1999, and was promoted to finance manager in August
2001. He then worked for t&i&)8 &£ B AR A A (Fujan Xunxing
Group Company Limited) as finance manager from May 2002 to
October 2007. Mr. Yang graduated from Zhongnan University of
Economics with finance major in July 1994.

Mr. Lin Zhenshuang (# 5 %), aged 39, was appointed as an
executive Director on 25 September 2014. He joined our Group
in August 2001 and is the manager of the international business
department of Jinjiang Jicheng Industry Co., Ltd. (B IE/KETH
fR 2 A]) (“Jinjiang Jicheng”). He is responsible for supervising our
Group’s sales and marketing operations. Mr. Lin graduated from
Huagiao University with a diploma in Japanese Language in June
2000.
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EERENREBAEBREFE

Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth ({7 ) , aged 51, was appointed an
executive Director of the Company on 13 April 2015. He has more
than 10 years’ experience in project management and business
strategic planning. Mr. Chung worked as a production manager
in the field of consumer electronics products for 5 years and
his responsibilities mainly focused on overseeing the production
process. Mr. Chung is responsible for the strategic planning and
finance of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tso Sze Wai (& B 4 ), aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 7 October 2016. Mr. Tso
holds a Bachelor degree in Commerce awarded by University
of New South Wales, Australia and a postgraduate diploma in
Computing in the University of Western Sydney, Australia. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Accountants. He has
over 20 years of experience in accounting, corporate finance and
corporate secretarial matters. He is currently the financial controller
and company secretary of Green Energy Group Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 979).
Prior to that, he had held senior management positions in a number
of listed companies in Hong Kong and Singapore. From July 2015 to
July 2017, Mr. Tso was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Hua Han Health Industry Holdings Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 587).
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Mr. Yang Xuetai (%522 KX), aged 44, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 23 January 2015. Mr. Yang
graduated from China Academy of Art with a bachelor degree in
industrial design in July 1998 and a master degree in art in January
2010. He has been working for the art faculty of The Huagiao
University as assistant professor since 2010. He had also been a
visiting scholar of Tunghai University in Taiwan for five months in
2012.

Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie (Z 455 ) , aged 44, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 21 August 2015. Ms. Lee
holds a Postgraduate certificate in Business Administration from
The Open University of Hong Kong and Diploma in Accounting from
The University of Hong Kong, School of Professional and Continuing
Education. Ms. Lee has over 20 years of experience in finance and
administration. She has worked for various foreign and multi-national
organisation.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheung Ka Shing (5837 ) , aged 36, is the financial controller
of our Company. He joined our Group in March 2014. Mr. Cheung
worked for Lau & Fung CPA Limited as auditor from June 2005
to May 2007 and NCN CPA Limited as auditor from June 2007 to
August 2008. He had also worked for SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
from September 2008 to April 2011, and left as a senior accountant.
He worked for a private company as finance manager from April
2011 to February 2014. Mr. Cheung was recognised as a certified
public accountant by The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants on 14 July 2009. He received his bachelor’s degree in
accounting from the Hong Kong Shue Yan University in July 2005.

Mr. Liu Liangping ( 2] R ) , aged 49, is the manager of the Group’s
research and development department. He joined our Group in
2000 as manager of the production department of Jinjiang Jicheng.
He has later become the manager of the Group’s research and
development department and is responsible for supervising our
Group’s product design, and research and development operations.
Mr. Liu completed his secondary education in the PRC in June 1986.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Ka Shing (5% 5 i) is the company secretary of the
Company and please refer to his biography in the paragraphs
headed “Senior Management” above for details.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEgHE

The Directors are pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Group’s
principal place of business is in the PRC.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and sale
of umbrella. The principal activities and other particulars of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review in respect of the Group’s performance for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and the material factors underlying its
results and financial position, principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group, as well as the Group’s environmental policies, are set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 6 to 15 of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. The Group is
committed adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of
resources, energy saving and waste reduction. We strive to minimize
our environmental impact by energy saving, recycling of used
papers, office supplies and other materials. For details, please refer
to the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
Report” on pages 32 to 38 of this report.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any incidence of
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group’s business and operations.
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RELATIONS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Board recognises that our employees are one of the greatest
assets contributing to the Group’s future success. The Group
strives to motivate its employees with competitive remuneration
package and opportunities for advancement and improvement
of their skills to attract and retain our employees. The Board
reviews the remuneration package of our employees annually and
makes necessary adjustments to conform to the prevailing market
practices. The Group also adopted share options scheme to reward
the contribution of the employees as an incentive.

The Board also strives to develop long-standing and good
relationships with our customers and suppliers in order to achieve
the Group’s long-term goals.

During the year, there was no significant dispute between the Group
and our business partners.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, aggregate sales to the
Group’s largest and top five customers accounted for approximately
23.9% (2016: approximately 25.7%) and approximately 69.4%
(2016: approximately 72.9%), respectively, of the Group’s total
Revenue for the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, aggregate purchases
from the Group’s largest and top five suppliers of raw materials
accounted for approximately 19.6% (2016: approximately 35.2%)
and approximately 30.9% (2016: approximately 57.0%), respectively,
of the Group's total purchases for the year.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or
any Shareholder of the Company (who or which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any interest in the Group’s top five customers and
suppliers.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the latest five financial years is set out on page 128 of
the annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 60 to 127 of the
annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 15 to
the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of reserves of the Company and the Group are set out in note
27 to the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

There was no reserve available for distribution to the shareholders of
the Company as at 31 December 2017.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group donated approximately RMB1 million
(2016: approximately RMB1 million).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the
latest practicable date prior to issue of this report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands where the
Company was incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Wenii

Mr. Yang Guang

Mr. Lin Zhenshuang

Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tso Sze Wai
Mr. Yang Xuetai
Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie

Pursuant to Article 108 and Article 112 of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth being an executive
Director, and Mr. Yang Xuetai and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie being
independent non-executive Directors, shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. All the retiring Directors are eligible for
re-elections.

During the year and up to the date of this Directors’ Report,
Mr. Huang Wenji, Mr. Yang Guang, Mr. Lin Zhenshuang and
Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth are also directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Other director of the Company’s
subsidiaries include Mr. Chen Ruixin.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors, including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, has a service agreement
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or in existence during the year ended 31 December
2017.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive in the Company’s shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the associated corporations of
the Company, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) which will have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN THE COMPANY

EERBEN
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Approximate
percentage of

shareholding
BARRE DL

65.68%

Number of
Name of Director Nature of interests Capacity Shares
EEpR Bzt E 514 R EE
Mr. Huang Weniji (Note) Long position Interest in a 2,462,818,000
controlled
corporation
BEXELEE (M) e R AR B 5
Note: Bizr:

Jicheng Investment Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Huang
Weniji. Accordingly, Mr. Huang Weniji is deemed to be interested in the shares
held by Jicheng Investment Limited under the SFO.
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Saved as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company and their
respective associates had any interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2017, the persons or corporations who had an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:
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Approximate
Number of percentage of
Nature of interests Capacity Shares shareholding
Bty 20 RGO EE BasRES
Jicheng Investment Limited LLong position Beneficial owner 2,462,818,000 65.68%
e ERnEBA
Mr. Huang Wenii (Note 1) Long position Interest in a 2,462,818,000 65.68%
controlled corporation
BXELAE (B e REZESEE #ER
Ms. Chen Jieyou (Note 2) Long position Interest of spouse 2,462,818,000 65.68%
BRER B A+ (Pid5E2) HE [k g
Notes: B 5T
1. Jicheng Investment Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by 1. Jicheng Investment Limited & XX &L £ 2

Mr. Huang Wenji. Accordingly, Mr. Huang Wenji is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Jicheng Investment Limited under
the SFO.

2. Ms. Chen Jieyou is the spouse of Mr. Huang Wenji and accordingly
is deemed to be interested in the shares in which Mr. Huang Wenji
has interest under the SFO.
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| S S AR 1B Jicheng Investment
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Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons or corporation having an
interest or short position in shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, except for those
disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements, the Group had
no material connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions between the Group and its connected persons (as
defined under the Listing Rules) which are subject to the reporting,
announcement and the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed in
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the
year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, every Director or other officers of
the Company acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company
shall be entitled to be indemnified against of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he/she may incur or sustain in or
about the execution of his/her duties in his/her office. The Company
has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its Directors and officers.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
confirmation given by Mr. Huang Wenji and Jicheng Investment
Limited, being controlling shareholders (the “Controlling
Shareholders”) of the Company, to ensure their compliance with the
non-competition undertakings as disclosed in the prospectus (the
“Prospectus”) of the Company dated 3 February 2015.

OTHER UNDERTAKINGS BY CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Controlling Shareholders have
also undertaken to indemnify the Group against all actions, claims,
demands, proceedings, costs and expenses, losses and liabilities
whatsoever made, suffered or incurred by the Group arising from (i)
the restructuring and reorganisation undergone by the Group on or
before the date on which the global offering becomes unconditional;
or (i) the Group’s non-compliance with the PRC laws, rules and
regulations as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Business —
Non-compliance” of the Prospectus. No provision has been made
for the above during the year ended 31 December 2017.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

There had been no contract of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and controlling shareholders (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates, has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest with the
Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 23 January
2015 for the purpose of rewarding certain eligible persons for
their past contributions and attracting and retaining, or otherwise
maintaining on-going relationships with, such eligible persons who
are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to the performance, growth or success of the Group. Subject to the
earlier termination of the Share Option Scheme in accordance with
the rule thereof, the Share Option Scheme shall remain in force for a
period of ten years commencing on the Listing Date.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include any proposed, full-time
or part-time employees, executive or officers of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; any directors or proposed director (including
non-executive director and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any direct or indirect
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and any
advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval in
general meeting, i.e. 378,600,000 shares of the Company. Subject
to the issue of a circular by the Company and the approval of the
shareholders in general meeting and/or such other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time, the Board may:

(i) renew this limit at any time to 10% of the shares in issue as
at the date of the approval by the shareholders in general
meeting; and/or

(ii) grant options beyond the 10% limit to eligible participants
specifically identified by the Board.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of shares to
be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme adopted by the Group (including both
exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee within any
12-months period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of options in excess of 1% limit
shall be subject to: () the issue of a circular by the Company; and
(i) the approval of the shareholders in general meeting and/or other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance
in general meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable
by the directors, which period may commence from the date of the
offer of the share options, and ends on a date which is not later
than ten years from the date of grant of the share options subject
to the provisions for early termination thereof. There is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.
Participants of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay the
Company HK1.0 upon acceptance of the grant on or before 21 days
after the offer date.
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The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the shares on
the date of the offer for the grant, which must be a business day; (i)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of
a share.

The following table disclosed movements in the Company’s share
options during the year:

Exercise

Grantee Exercise period price

Date of grant

Employees 3.11.2017 3.11.2017 10 2.11.2018 0.097
&8 I = “2—t#+-A=B%
—F-/\#+-A=AH
Consultants 3.11.2017 3.11.2017 10 2.11.2018 0.097
B I i = “E-t5+-A=HZ
—E2-\#+-A=AH

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director of the Company or their respective spouses
or minor children, or were such rights exercised by them, or was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes organized by the PRC municipal and provincial government
authorities for the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and
operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for the employees in
Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to adopt corporate governance practice.
The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 16 to 31.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring Auditor, Elite Partners CPA
Limited will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Huang Weniji
Chairman and Executive Director

Fujian Province, the PRC, 28 March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZRBENRE

elite
. partnhers

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Jicheng Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 60 to 127, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Key audit matter

HEERER

Assessment of the recoverability of the trade receivables

B 5 W kR 7T Y T 1 A A

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had trade receivables of
approximately RMB154,350,000 which was attributable to the sales
of umbrellas. As discussed in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, the general credit period of trade receivables ranged
from 30 to 150 days.

RZZE—tHF+A=+—H EBEXEREHENEMEEDN
B 5 WA A R #154,350,0007T © R4R & B 75 3R 2% MT 52 19FT
it B 5 REWRIE 2 —RIEE BT FI0H E150H -

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group
consider any significant change in credit quality for each of individual
debtors when sales were made to customers. The directors of the
Company concluded that no provision for impairment is necessary in
respect of these balances as at 31 December 2017.
RETESRIWFIENTRE MR BSXEERAEBRERE
THEREZEZENEBAZEEEZRNEMNEREH . BEQ
AESERAHAR T —t+tF+ A=+ —HHNZEEHRITER
BREE-

18 M B BLAT R

FARELER

BREZFESREBERMANBEHE 81
BMSBE—_T—tF+-_A=1+—HLF
BZEAMBRENBETRREENER-
ZEFHRIRNEMAZFAERREMBRERRK
HAMEBERRETRE BRMATIEHZ
FERREHREBNER -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANEREEBEREXEHEZARX

Our major audit procedures to address the
management’s impairment assessment of
trade receivable included the following:
BRI EIREYH E 5 RWGKIANBIE &
MEIBEEZREFBFEATERE:

o We reviewed the aging of trade
receivables and discussed with the
management of the Group whether
impairment should be provided,
especially for those that had been past
due and the rationale for management’s
impairment decision by reference to
payment pattern during the year as well
as other information available.
BMEREZRMKRIERKITE &
EERENwmes EMRERRIE LA
OB MNFIET RAERE R ERS
ERFEMNFTT R LEM G E R E
ERERBERAECEE-

° We analysed the impairment focusing
on any anomalies in the provisioning
methodology and followed up with
any anomalies, such as unusual
payment terms, through discussion with
management and review of customer
payment history.
BHBRERBEHETNEEAES 5
AR (B 37 48 B T A 1T A e S R B
EPNHRELBRETS ENRERFR
Bk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZRBENRE

Key audit matter

HEERER

Assessment of the recoverability of the trade receivables (continued)
B 5 g B 14 71 (78)

We identified the managements assessment of the recoverability
of the trade receivables as a key audit matter because significant
management judgement had to be made for the assessment,
including but not limited to assessing the credit quality of customers
and settlement history of customers.

MR RESRKFEN AT ROEFTEEREELEARAE (B
RETRRAGEFZEEEBXRRETLNFERE) At fie
KA ER R — AR EZER

OTHER INFORMATION IN THIS ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMNEREEBEREREEZARX

° We assessed the recoverability of trade
receivables with reference to the credit
quality, settlement history and aging
analysis of the debtor.
BM2ZEBANGEL R BELH
K BREe D AT REAL B 5 JE WO IE ) T i )
Mo
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

18 M B BLAT R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZRBENRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Siu Edmund with Practising Certificate number
PO5333.

Elite Partners GPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10/F, 8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

28 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GneBmkEtEEESEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ A =+—RHIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT
Revenue W as 7 538,264 603,985
Cost of sales $HE P AR (457,326) (530,173)
Gross profit EF 80,938 73,812
Other income and gains E U A Rz 7 4,889 8,232
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAXT (12,833) (12,971)
Administrative expenses TBRAZ (56,835) (47,196)
Provision for litigation SFAAR 24 - (1,001)
Finance costs B 75 X AR 9 (9,454) (7,362)
Profit before taxation B 15 B g 6,705 13,514
Income tax expense Frigfif = 10 (3,175) (7,390)
Profit for the year F AR 11 3,530 6,124
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) BEEAJREEF DA =EEZZ
for the year that may be subsequently FREMEEKEE
reclassified to profit or loss: (FAxX) :
Exchange differences on translation of B G INETS B 5 R 3k
financial statements of EAXZENREZR
foreign operation 457 (801)
Total comprehensive income for the year & A2 HE WS 4258 3,987 5,823
Profit for the year attributable to: TS IBEEFRRF
Owner of the Company VIN/NEIEZZS N 3,530 6,124
Total comprehensive income for the year WA N &HEERERNLE
attributable to: o ok 4R 58
Owner of the Company KRARHEE A 3,987 5,823
(Restated)
(FeE751)
Earnings per share: BRAT :
Basic (RMB) AR (ARE) 12 0.09centsz?  0.16 cents
Diluted (RMB) e (ARE) 0.09cents  0.16 cents %

60  CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current assets

mES

BF 75 7R 3t &

At 31 December 2017 R—_ZE—+F+_-_A=+—H

FREBEE

2017
—EB-tF

RMB’000
AR®T T

2016
—E—RF
RMB’000
AREET T

Property, plant and equipment R 15 103,552 108,842
Prepaid lease payments BN ERIE 16 35,403 36,339
Promissory note receivables L SRR R MR IR 17 - 28,708
138,955 173,889
Current assets MBEE
Inventories rE 18 204,832 180,076
Trade receivables B 5 W KRIE 19 154,350 105,679
Prepayments and other receivables FEREREMERRIE 20 59,028 81,885
Prepaid lease payments T ERE 16 936 936
Tax recoverable A] Uy [e] 7 18 1,630 2,249
Promissory note receivables A B GRTE 17 31,616 -
Pledged deposits EEBER 21 23,101 31,274
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 21 66,753 137,304
542,246 539,403
Current liabilities mEBAaE
Trade and bills payables HEHRNFBERENRE 22 68,549 100,552
Accrued expenses and other payables — fERH &R R HMEMKIE 23 8,586 9,306
Bank borrowings HRITIE 25 163,480 172,451
240,615 282,309
Net current assets MEEEFE 301,631 257,094
Net assets BEFE 440,586 430,983
Capital and reserves attributable to owner 72 &1 A A FE(EE K
of the Company KB
Share capital &N 26 4,731 4,731
Reserves & 27 435,855 426,252
Total equity B 440,586 430,983

The consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 127 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

FOORITAZHEAVBHRREBEZTIN
“E-NF=ZA T N\BHEL EETE

28 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: WHATREKESE
Huang Weniji Yang Guang
BEX&E Bk
Director Director
EF EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REREB R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ A =+—RHIFE

Share
capital
A
RMB'000

A

Share
premium
BAEE

RMB'000

A

Translation
reserve
EiGfE
RMB'000
BT

Statutory reserve

Share
option
reserve
BRERRE
RMB'000

Merger
reserve
AptefE

Retained
profits
REER
RMB'000

Total equity

At1 January 2016 W=F-x5-F-H 4,731 116,740 2,266 34,59 36,004 81,621 149,302 425,160
Proft for the year EMjai - - - - - - 6,124 6,124
Exchange diferences on translation of ~ #E S5 £
financial statements of foreign BBRREEL
operations ERES - - 301) - - - - (301)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FRZEMEEE - - (301) - - - 6,124 5823
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTATRE - - - 1,907 - - (1,907) -
Lapse of share options BRELR 2 - - - - (36,004) - 36,004 -
At 31 December 2016 and RIE-RE
1 January 2017 +ZAZt-BR
—E-+5-A-A 4,731 116,740 1,965 36,503 - 81,621 189,523 430,983
Proft for the year ERjaf - - - - - - 3530 3530
Exchange differences on translation of A E 850 £
financial statements of foreign BBRREEL
operations EREE - - 457 - - - - 457
Total comprehensive income for the year R 2 NEEE - - 457 - - - 3530 3987
Transfer to statutory reserve BRZEEHE - - - 117 - - {1,177 -
Equity-settled share-based transactions ~ bIE#EE
RABERZZS 28 - - = = 5,616 - - 5,616
At 31 December 2017 RIE—tE
+-A=t-H 4731 116,740 2422 37,680 5,616 81,521 191,876 440,586

PESERIERAR AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # ZE —

GERERER

—tF+-_A=+—BLFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARE T AR T T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES gL EE
Profit before taxation Bk £ A1 4 6,705 13,514
Adjustments for: FE
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE 7H & SR8 5 936 1,091
Finance costs B 7% A AN 9,454 7,362
Bank interest income RITH B HA (491) (837)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1%¥ = MR EITE 6,671 7,288
Government grants B 4 B (851) (3,046)
Impairment of inventories FERE = 24,655
Imputed interest of promissory notes FHEBREER S (2,908) ®)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHBARZEE - 5,506
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEDE BELEREZ
equipment 518 203 27
Provision for litigation FEABE - 1,001
Equity-settled share based payment expense IHEREE ARG B
%WZHmeﬂi 5,616 -
Operating cash flows before movements LEESEER 2
in working capital LERRE 25,335 56,553
Increase in inventories GFEEM (24,756) (97,833)
Increase in trade receivables 2 5 EWEIEE M (48,671) (54,429)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments TR RUIE N H A e W R IE
and other receivables (k4,18 hn 22,801 (42,373)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills payables & 5 BN RIE KL ERNZE
(CEVe: -l (32,003) 36,077
(Decrease)/increase in accrued expenses FEETE A REAENRIA
and other payables (R, 10 (637) 197
Cash used in operations KEZBFARS (57,931) (101,808)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid ERPEMERER (2,556) (12,933)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES RESEEN AT IR & F R (60,487) (114,741)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KEEE
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment BB - R &t (1,840) (33,335)
Placement of pledged deposits TFREEBT R - (7,469)
Withdrawal of pledged deposits REE BT R 8,173 =
Bank interest income received B UER 1T F B 4A 491 837
Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiary HEMRBRARZ
Remt F5E - (107)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BELEEZ
plant and equipment Fr 5 3k I8 256 34
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) KREEBBME(FA)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES HeFE 7,080 (40,040)

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
20174 F 3§



64

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ A =+—RHIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BB EB)
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITER (172,611) (216,434)
New bank borrowings raised FriEIRITIE R 163,640 252,754
Interest paid SRR (9,454) (7,362)
Government grants received B WBAT 47 B 851 3,046
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM BMEER (FTA) B
FINANCING ACTIVITIES R /T (17,574) 32,004
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RekB2ZEWRD
CASH EQUIVALENTS SFEE (70,981) (122,777)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE HNEPE R BB B
RATE CHANGES 430 (301)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHzReRReEEY
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 137,304 260,382
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZECRRSEEY:
AT THE END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash RIRTTHEBR LIRS 66,753 137,304

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
12 June 2014 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

The address of the registered office is Clifton House, 75
Fort Street, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The
address of the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong is Room 904, Loon Kee Building, 275 Des
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company is engaged
in investment holding while the principal subsidiaries are
principally engaged in manufacture and sale of umbrellas.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollars. The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“‘RMB”) since most of the subsidiaries are operating
in RMB environment and the functional currency of most of the
subsidiaries is RMB.

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that are relevant for the
preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised losses

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs, 2014-2016 Cycle

HKFRSs (Amendment)

AEBEEAXREFEER

ARRBR-_T—MFENA+ = BIRER
ERERRZEREREEMKR L AR
HeBRAR -

= ffft 9% = B2 b 3k A& Clifton House, 75
Fort Street, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands e R ARIR BB 2 EE
MBI N B EEE 2755 B
REAZE - AR B EREFMR ME
EMBEARFERERERIHERNS-

RRBZNEEBERETT - BRAE D
HBRABARARE (TARKE])RRE
ERREAMBLABZEEERAR
¥ HEEMBRRAARKZS -

EREEMBHRELEAN([FE
M mEER])
AEBEERAFEERERATE ST
N ([HEEEFMAg])EM 2R
HAKREZEEWBHRRABZ TIHIH
R REIERT BB B IME LR :

BEEGRENER BEIHN

ZERTA
BEREGMENE12S BRAREHEERZ
ZIERT A EXRBEE
BERAMBREEN FEPBREE
(ERTA) —T-MEE
—T-RFRY
HO i
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66

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ A =+—RHIFE

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

The amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to make
disclosures that aim to enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.
Reconciliations of various types of the Group’s financing
liabilities are disclosed in Notes 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Other than such additional disclosures with regards to HKAS
7, the application of the amendments as mentioned above
has not had any material effect on the consolidated financial
statements.

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 2. EREBAMEHREERN([FB

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) MBEmEER]) (&)
The Group has not applied any of the following new and NEE W EER T EA B2 EMIEHER
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet BB RS ET B BB mE
mandatorily effective: AEH :
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments! EEMBREELESE SRmIA
HKFRS 15 and Revenue from Contracts with EEMBREENBEIHER RATFEN
amendments to Customers' BRI BHREER Pl 6
HKFRS 15 ERLT/A TR
HKFRS 16 Leases? BAEMBHREEAFE 165 HE?
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement EEMBREENE  URHIH
of Share-based Payment ZIEFTAR RH2Z
Transactions' DERETE
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial EEMBREER ERMBRE
Instruments with HKFRS 4 BB R IR
Insurance Contracts' SR T A
BT
WmE%ER
FAFIRE
B8
R
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BRI R EER ERAERS
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and F10R R BB G L] HEZE N A
its Associate or Joint Venture® E285R L EFT A KEERE
Z FEEY
ENEES
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property’ BEGFERF405 EBRINEME
ZIERTAR
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRS EEMBREER BEEMBRE
Standards 2014-2016 Cycle* ZIEFTAR HRZF
—HEE
—T-RF
Bz
F o
HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions 58 (BRBBHRERE INERFR
and Advance Consideration’ ZEG)RRBE2R BRRE
HK(FRIC) Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income 5E (ERHBHRERE EHBEREE
Tax Treatments? ZEE)ARBESN BT HETE
=2
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January ! RZZE-NF-—H-—H=xEEZFAEHN
2018 FEHMEER
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RZT—hF—A—BXEEZRBH
2019 FEHBER
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 8 RETE BB ERRARNFERREAE
determined i
4 For those amendments that will become effective for annual ¢ MZEBR_T—NF—A—HxHE
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 BT ERHRER 2B AME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - T —+F+ A =+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HKFRS 9 has introduced new requirements for a) classification
and measurement of financial assets, b) impairment of financial
assets and ¢) general hedge accounting.

Specifically, with regard to the classification and measurement
of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires all recognised
financial assets that are within the scope of HKFRS 9 to
be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of each of
the subsequent accounting periods. Debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI). All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair value at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. Further, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss and that
cumulative fair value changes will not be reclassified to profit or
loss upon derecognition of the investment.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value of a
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of such changes in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit
or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair value
through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
PESERIERAR AR

2.

EREEMBHRELDN ([FE
MBRELER]) ()

ERMBRELEUFIRESHMIA

BEMBREENFHR DA D ER
AESRMEE ERMEENMEKC
—RE P EETRIESIAFRE

BRI meREEN I BERGE &
BB REENFIRREBRE LY
BREERNZOFRBEANNFACDER
TREERRRBERAR A TENE
NEBRRUBEHNRERENEBRRX
RBEAMEENANREREE/AS
NREREBERAEOHNENEHRER
FREREST HRRIZEHA A E -
NEBRRUBEHNRERERHEESH
BENEBEARENEENGERER
RENHEREERASHNENEBER
ERREBEMEENREATEFE-
PR EMEBIRE MR EHNRE
SETHEARREAFEFEWINR
BEEBVBREERFN BB A
BEmEREEEM RS2 ERR
B(AIHBEEE THEREFBUBR
SEAEIFEANEBA GBS
PR RARE) A FERERNE

ERERABENEDER MRAFA
FEZSHHIENRUIEEAZRERE

MoBERE-

PIEERBRATFEFABSZEHARE
ZETEME BEMBREERFR
RE FeRaEEERREZEMER
ZABZAFEED BTN EME
Y a2 51 - B IR H Al 2 [ U W R
ZEBEELIIRMBR 2 G
AtERm-REemaBEEERRESMm
BRI AVEEHPHRIEEHNIEE
B RIBFB G EREI9 - HE
REATFEFABRZEHBEZEE
N ERESFEIR BT 2



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

With regard to impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
has adopted an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model required under HKAS 39. In
general, the expected credit loss model requires an entity to
assess the change in credit risk of the financial asset since
initial recognition at each reporting date and to recognise the
expected credit loss depending on the degree of the change in
credit risk.

With regard to the general hedge accounting requirements,
HKFRS 9 retains the three types of hedge accounting
mechanisms currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS
9, greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for hedging
instruments and the types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with
the principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured at
amortised costs and other items that subject to the impairment
provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company,
if the expected credit loss model were to be applied by
the Group, the accumulated amount of impairment loss to
be recognised by Group as at 1 January 2018 would be
slightly increased as compared to the accumulated amount
recognised under HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected
credit losses provision on trade receivables. Such further
impairment recognised under expected credit loss model
would reduce the opening retained profits at 1 January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - T —+F+ A =+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
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in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the A

standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition: [ ap~

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer. o AR -HERERFPZEH-

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the o RO BREANZEHEE:
contract.

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price. o HEI EEXHE-

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract.

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation.

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the
timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective
reporting periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(continueq)

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that
would be expected to have a material impact on the Group
in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements also include applicable
disclosure required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - T —+F+ A =+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (i.e. its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed
above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year/period are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date
the Company gains control until the date when the Company
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owner of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owner of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

CHANGES IN THE GROUP’S OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN
EXISTING SUBSIDIARIES

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

MERGER ACCOUNTING FOR BUSINESS COMBINATION
INVOLVING ENTITIES UNDER COMMON GONTROL

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements items of the combining entities or businesses
in which the common control combination occurs as if the
combination had occurred from the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the control of the
controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised as
consideration for goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in
the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common control
combination, to the extent of the continuation of the controlling
party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control, where this is
a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common control
combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - T —+F+ A =+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

MERGER ACCOUNTING FOR BUSINESS COMBINATION
INVOLVING ENTITIES UNDER COMMON CONTROL (continued)

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses had
been consolidated at the end of the previous reporting period
unless the combining entities or businesses first came under
common control at a later date.

Equity interest in subsidiaries held by parties other than the
Controlling Shareholder, and changes therein, prior to the
reorganisation are presented as non-controlling interests in
equity applying the principles of merger accounting.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for any discounts
given, sales returns and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
REVENUE RECOGNITION (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes other than construction in progress
as described below are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes are carried
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than construction in progress, less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - T —+F+ A =+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments, including
any lump-sum upfront payments, are allocated between the
land and the building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year/period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

BORROWING COSTS

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred. An internally-generated
intangible asset arising from development activities (or from the
development phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and
only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - T —+F+ A =+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE

(continued)

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset; and

° the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
asset is reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any).

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investment in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - T —+F+ A =+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
TAXATION (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS AND TERMINATION BENEFITS

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i) A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick
leave in the period the related service is rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
related service.

(i)  Share options granted to employees of the Group is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at the grant date, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted.

The equity amount is recognised in share option reserve
until either the option is exercised (when it is transferred
to the share premium account) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to retained profits).

SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED TO CONSULTANTS

Share options issued in exchange for services are measured
at the fair values of the services received, unless that fair value
cannot be reliably measured, in which case the goods or
services received are measured by reference to the fair value
of the share options granted. The fair values of the goods
or services received are recognised as expenses, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve), when
the Group obtains the goods or when the counterparties render
services, unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as
assets.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - T —+F+ A =+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Financial assets are mainly loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables, other receivables,
pledged deposits, bank balances and cash) and promissory
note receivables are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - T —+F+ A =+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables and other receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit period of
30 to 150 days, as well as observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
assets’ carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial assets’ original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables and other receivables,
where the carrying amounts are reduced through the use of
allowance accounts. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable or other receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the respective allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # ZE —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by group entities are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of financial liabilities and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group entities are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables, accrued
expenses and other payables and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premium or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances and cash
as defined above.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generation units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately in profit or loss.

RELATED PARTIES

A party is considered to be related to the Company if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
(i) has control or joint control of the Company;
(i) has significant influence over the Company; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Company or of a parent of the Company; or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Company are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Company are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE - &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
RELATED PARTIES (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Company or an
entity related to the Company;

(viy  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viiiy The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(o)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING THE ENTITY’S
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment assessment of the trade receivables

The policy for impairment assessment on trade receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of recoverability
and outstanding period of accounts and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each debtor. In determining whether impairment loss should
be recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the directors of the Company
make judgements as to whether there is any observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from individual trade receivables. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the
amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking
into account their estimated residual values. These estimates
are based on the historical experience of the actual residual
value and useful lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. The Group assesses annually
the residual value and the useful life of the property, plant
and equipment and if the expectation differs from the original
estimate, such a difference may impact the depreciation for the
year and the estimate will be changed in the future period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - T —+F+ A =+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continueq)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of the property, plant
and equipment when there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. The impairment loss for
property, plant and equipment are recognised for the amounts
by which the carrying amounts exceed their recoverable
amounts, in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
The recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates such as future revenue and discount rates.

Estimated allowance for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis
at the end of each reporting period and makes allowance
for obsolete and slow-moving items identified that are no
longer suitable for sale or use. The Group makes allowance
for inventories based on the assessment of the net realisable
value. The management estimates the net realisable value for
inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from last year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes bank borrowings, net of bank balances and cash,
and equity attributable to the owner of the Company, which
comprises issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on the recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, issuance
of new shares as well as the issue of new debts or the
redemption of borrowings.

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
PESERIERAR AR

ERERMHE RMEF AEEM
ZEERR (#)

HEF T RES 2 ETERIR (&)
W BB RRE G BE
AEEREEMPTRBERIME BER
BRESRZREBERRNZEFEEZR
HE VX BEIREBEIRERBRET
REASE 2T BRUEEEBHE
AE SR ERTAER - WE K
P M ik s 2 AR 13 & BEAR $R 40 FR(B (B T
HET %S EARBHE KGR
flon B & ek RIrm X -

FEZ 1G5 B E
AEBEEEEBRNERENRENRE D
o YHBR A TBESFLEHER
2B RBHE B ELBE - AR EIR
BRI ERFE AR EREELEE -
EEEEFERBESOCEZERRER
mRfhEtFEZ AR FE

EXEBER

FEBEEBETEAABREIAEEZE
REMFELE WEBELERRE
SRR REREAL R AEEZ
RERREEEFHR -

% B HE

AEBEZEXRGEREEHEFR (2R
RITER) HNBERTERERSAR
ARBHEAAEERGE (ETPREDE
TR )

ARREFTEMRTEAEE -ERIL
RE 2 — B0 ARREFTEBEANK
RARBEBERE R BB - REA
RABEZHBER AEESEBIK
RS BITHN IR AR BEITHEHR X
BOERFOBRBERER-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(A)

(B)

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

TREE

Financial assets

6. E®IA
SRMTEZER

2017
—E—+fF

(A)

2016
T—REF
RMB’000

ARBTIT

RMB’000
AR®T T

Promissory note receivables A R N EROR 31,616 28,708
Loans and receivables (including bank ERREBGIE (B
balances and cash) RITHEBNIRE) 245,052 274,809
Financial liabilities cREE
Amortised cost =D N 240,122 281,040
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND B) MBEMREEEERBEE

POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include
promissory note receivables, trade receivables, other
receivables, pledged deposits, bank balances and cash,
trade and bills payables, accrued expenses, and other
payables and bank borrowings. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency sales and purchases
denominated in United States dollars (“USD”), Japanese
Yen (“JPY”) and Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), which are
different from the functional currencies of the group
entities carrying out the transactions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ A =+—RHIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 6.

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continuead)

Market risk (continueq)

Currency risk (continued)

Also, certain trade receivables, pledged deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and bills payables, accrued
expenses and bank borrowings are denominated in
USD, JPY and HKD which are currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities. The
carrying amounts of the foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities of the Group at

EWIR (&)
B) HMEEMEEBEZEREE (&)

s mEE (&)

EEmEE (&)

BESN - E T E 5 RAGRR - B R
R RTEHKER S BZEN
FOAKENRE - Bt E A RIRTT
BB AR AT KB TatE
X AT METYIFEEEERE
BZEEER ARERBEHMK
MHNEFHEZEREERERA

the end of the reporting period are as follows: BE2REMBENT
Assets Liabilities
EE =K

2017 2016 2017 2016
ZB—+tF —T-RF ZB-—+tF —T—RF

’000 ’000

Fr Tt T
UsbD ETT 16,998 81,720 15 14,387
JPY Hot 492,638 47,519 180 11
HKD BT 998 4,650 1,542 -

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the directors of the Company
continuously monitor the related foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to currency risk of USD,
JPY and HKD.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% for all periods increase or decrease in USD, JPY
and HKD against the functional currency. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end
of each reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates an
increase in post-tax profit where USD, JPY and HKD
strengthen 5% against the functional currency. For a 5%
weakens of USD, JPY and HKD against the functional
currency, there would be an equal or opposite impact on
the profit and other equity and the balances below would
be negative.

Impact on profit for the year ended

usD ETT
JPY BT
HKD BT

HERBRZXE

EWMIA &)

BHEEARBEEERREE (#)

s mbE (&)

EEmEE (&)

BURE DT

AEBTEmMEBET BTLET
Z B R -

TREINFBHEAREEE X
BT RBTADEEETE
H B EE% 2B REEF B 5% )5
MEIEERABRNI2HIMNER
BERAZBREL R THRRERE
BHIINEERSE AL E T 25T
il - BRE DT E R IRIAINEFHE
ZRAXNEWIER YRS RE
HA R Bt NS B R5% 2 B B i B (B
BT ZEHRRRET - BLTRK
BRI EE THES B - FR TR
BEME MK BT RBITHE
T e & W B2 E5% B - % 3 s A I
HhERESHARRZTZE M
UTHEHRERAR-

2017 2016

S P4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTL  ARETR
5,527 1,647

1,423 1,782

(23) 145
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continueq)
Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The Group’s currency risk is mainly attributable to
the exposure on trade receivables, pledged deposits,
bank balances and cash, trade and bills payables,
accrued expenses and bank borrowings denominated
in USD, JPY and HKD at the end of the reporting period
respectively.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to fixed rate pledged deposit and fixed rate bank
borrowings (see notes 21 and 25 for details respectively).
The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider other necessary
action when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily
to variable-rate bank balances (see note 21 for details of
these balances). The exposure to the interest rate risk for
variable rate bank balances is insignificant as the bank
balances have a short maturity period.

Credit risk

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 24% (2016:
38%) of the total trade receivables at 31 December 2017
was due from the Group’s largest customer.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 69% (2016:
88%) of the total trade receivables at 31 December 2017
was due from the Group’s top five customers.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in Japan, which accounted for
63% (2016: 38%) of the total trade receivables as at
31 December 2017.

6. SRIA#)

(B)

BHEEARBEEERREE (#)
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continuead)

Liquidity risk

In management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in

cash flows. Management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

6. E®IHA#)

(B)

BHERAREEZEERREE (#)

REERDESRR FAEEER
REFREMBASEFENNER
EREREABRMNANEELE 2K
FORERERERDZIHE-E
BEERRTERZHABRL

FERIT & B

TERREZTEEMRFAIASE
BETEESREBBEZIHR TGO
HIE I - % R IR B AN EA N R
ZERFPEHREBABZIARITR
RenEMmE - 2= BREMNEK
AEREME -

As at 31 December 2017

R=-Z2—+tH&+=-H=+—H
Total
On demand or undiscounted Carrying
within 1 year cash flows amount
RERS RIFRBES
MER TEHAE BREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR¥T T AR TR
Trade and bills payables g 5 EMNFIE
RENER 68,549 68,549 68,549
Accrued expenses and FEErERAREA
other payables FEAS 3R IE 8,397 8,397 8,397
Bank borrowings RITER 171,623 171,623 163,480
248,569 248,569 240,426
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. &®MIA#)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND (B) HMKEMEEBEEREZE (£)
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) HEELREE (&)

As at 31 December 2016
R-ZBE—RFt+-_A=+—H
Total
On demand or undiscounted Carrying

within 1 year cash flows amount
RERK AFTHRRE
1E A = A EE RREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBT T ARBT T

Trade and bills payables 5 EN IR

RENER 100,552 100,552 100,552
Accrued expenses and EETEBRAKEM
other payables J& - FRIE 8,037 8,037 8,037
Bank borrowings RITIER 180,697 180,697 172,451
289,286 289,286 281,040
(C) FAIR VALUE () ~A¥E&E
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying KRAREERE AREHEYVE
amounts of current financial assets and current financial 3R P DAE B R 2R 4R B 8 X AR
liabilities recorded at amortised cost using the effective ABRZRBDeMEER T S B
interest rate method in the consolidated financial BEKE ABs AR &R - tEER
statements approximate to their fair values due to their EESAEAFEES-

immediate or short-term maturities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR

6.

U B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE - &

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(€)

FAIR VALUE (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair value.

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
PESERIERAR AR

6.

—tF+A=+—HLFE

ERIA(#)
(©) AF¥E#E)

SN SR F B R S - A FEE
ERANFERFEZBARE
ZABREERBABEBYE QT

BHEERBCEEIAE — 2K

= FHBIT

J — B ABEATEAR
L+EE]HX SHREZEEXEE

nE

Of]

HRBTHEHZHE R

)

s E_RBWAREERSE &
PreEmz®EN EESLA
BEUEERSARERFIZ
WABE &

s FEZRBWARENEELA
BETABREZHARE-

REEBBIRRKR 2NN A H
imﬂﬁé&imﬂ%%ﬂ@ﬂ%@@iﬁi
HEAWAFERS



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable
for goods sold and service provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts, sales returns and sales related
taxes. Analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as
follows:

Wy 3 B H A A R W 58

Was e —REBBRET R L EE M
RURSG 2o W R EER SRR (DI
- HERMMHERBRE) - FAK
SEzWEmZ2 AT

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARET T
Revenue g
Sale of goods HESm 538,264 603,985
Other income and gains Habg A & kS
Bank interest income RITH B WA 491 837
Government grants (Note a) BT E) (M3ka) 851 3,046
Exchange gain, net B 55, Uk 5 05 B8 = 4,341
Imputed interest on promissory AR ZIREER S
notes receivables 2,908 8
Others (Note b) E A (Pi5ED) 639 -
4,889 8,232

Notes:

(@) During the year, government grants of approximately
RMB851,000 (2016: RMB3,046,000) were received, where
the Group had fulfilled the relevant criteria, in respect of certain
research and development projects. The amounts were therefore
immediately recognised as other income.

(b)  The amount represents compensation received from insurance
company during the year.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is engaged in a single operating segment, the
manufacture and sales of umbrellas. Operating segment is
reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”).
The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the board of directors as they collectively make
strategic decision in allocating the Group’s resources and
assessing performance. No segment assets, liabilities and
other segment information in the measure of Group’s segment
result and segment assets are presented as the information
is not reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

GEE

@ FRBURBZEFHEBDIOBEAR
851,000t (Z T —RF:ARM
3,046,0007T) - Hp - AKBEEHESH
THEHEE 2HEBEFEE-Flt %% 2

BEN TR A MM -

(b) HBELEENERNRRB D TRERL
BEsk -

7 EBEHR

AEBEKLE—DF BIRERHER
R RENMDIIHERETFEIELER
RE(TZTERERREB]) ZABHRSE
—BZAAEH-HREFEHNEAN
SEEREFAERAEAXRELRBIER
B AR EREREFERED AR
RZIBLBRRERAREEG 5
EXRBzOMEER D BEERILE
EIDMEE ABEREMOBER:
I T R A 3 5L B R 9 B B 3R 3R AT A )
BLERRERSABEM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ A =+—RHIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. oIER (&)
PRODUCT INFORMATION ERER

AEE GBS R EPOERR - B
AR R AR T H o AR B R R R
252 WA

The Group has been engaged in manufacturing and sales of
POE umbrella, nylon umbrella and umbrella parts. An analysis
of the Group’s revenue by product category is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF ‘

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

POE umbrella POE f§ 2 275,679 335,828

Nylon umbrella IEESSES 171,097 201,052

Umbrella parts MR Z M4 91,488 67,105

538,264 603,985

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC, accordingly,
no geographical information about the Group’s assets and
liabilities has been presented. The Group’s customers are
mainly located in Japan and the PRC. An analysis of the
Group’s revenue from external customers presented by
geographical location is detailed below:

& E R

AEEZEEMRNTE AT EL7)
ERAASEEERBENBRER K
SEZEPTEMRNAARNRFTE- 1ZH
BUBSAKEKRAINEP 2 W IE

2z SH T :

Revenue from external customers REMBEF 2z 2017 2016
—E—+t&F —T—NHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETx ARET T

Japan SN 337,436 329,392
PRC s 110,787 180,343
Other Hb 90,041 94,250
538,264 603,985
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. 7EER (&)
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS FRXTEEFZEHR
Details of the customers individually representing 10% or more ERME AR EBUWZE10% HIA FZTEZ
of the Group’s revenue are as follows: FIEMT

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

Customer A ZEA 70,761 151,138
Customer B ®FB 80,419 114,858
Customer C ®PFC 128,589 91,306

N/A
Customer D* =pPD* 63,536 TiE A

* The corresponding revenue does not contribute over 10% of the * HERS T EEEBFEERAEEEK
total revenue of the Group in the respective year. = 210% A ko
9. FINANGE COSTS 9. HBERA

2017 2016
—E—4F —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET R ARBTT

Interest expenses on: THFE2NERE:
— bank borrowings wholly repayable —BRAFREHEEZ
within five years RITERK 9,454 7,362
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FrE%iREX

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RHF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTIT

Current income tax BVHAFT1S 5%
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HEEMEH 3,870 7,390
Over-provision in respect of prior year BT EHBERE (695) =

3,175 7,390
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE - &

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continuea)

)

i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and BVI, the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands and BVI.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been
made for subsidiary established in Hong Kong as this
subsidiary did not have any assessable profits subject
to Hong Kong profits tax during the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the PRC companies is 25% for the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

According to the Corporate Income Tax law and its
implementation rules, dividends receivable by non-PRC
corporate residents from PRC enterprises are subject
to withholding tax at a rate of 10%, unless reduced by
tax treaties or arrangements, for profits earned since
1 January 2008.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

10.

—tF+A=+—HLFE

FrEwmMx< (&)

)

i)

REREREREBRAESEZ
MAIRER  AEEBAMNEM
MERERRBEBRIESEZME
e

RBEE-ZT—tFR-_FT—RF
+_ﬂ_+ HIEFE EEE’\J‘EA%C
ARSI 2 M 8 A I M AE AT R

MEBERNEH 2 ERBUEF) EAZJI
ELZME AR IRRENE
R

BRERBEPEMGHE (TR
BEE]) REEMBRIEB K
B -HFEAFEHETE—+FR=
T—XRNF+_A=+—"HILFE
Z TR 1526% ©

RIBEEMBEAREERTA
FhEERDEESRBEDEIKE
RE_ZZNF—A—BREN
B 1 B BB B - BR FEIR AR A R 4D
PR BRI E IR R
R10% TR RBURTEM

FAMBRAXEGABEREMEE
Wes &K < BRI RS M SRR T

2017 2016

—E—+tF g
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT AREEF T
Profit before taxation B 75 BT A 6,705 13,514

Tax at domestic income tax rate of 25% BN TSR E25% & 2

Bi1A 1,676 3,379
PRC dividend withholding tax R ELAR S FE T 335 -
Tax effect of non deductable expenses ~ A HIBEH Y 2 BT E 2,586 4,011
Tax effect of non-taxable income IR 2 T T 2 & (727) -
Over-provision in respect of prior year BEFEBEEG (695) -
Income tax expense for the year FANRGERAXZ 3,175 7,390
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # ZE —

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived
at after charging:

Salaries and allowances

1. FR&H

ilﬁxﬁnﬂ IR
B

ek (TEREEHE)

Br T 51 & IR

.%v:"FA,ﬁ%ﬁ%%W?I

—tF+-_A=+—BLFE

i A

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE—RF

RMB’000
AR®T T

RMB’000
ARBTT

(excluding directors’ emoluments) 79,934 73,592
Retirement benefit scheme contributions i /42 F 5T 21 { 3¢

(excluding directors) (TBREES) 16,186 14,350
Equity-settled share-based payment NEREE AR BER 2

DES 3,986 -
Total staff costs 8 TR ZA42%8 100,106 87,942
Cost of inventories recognised BRABASZ ZHFERA

as an expense (Note a) (FfizEa) 457,326 530,173
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE BEEREZEE

plant and equipment 203 27
Depreciation of property, Y- -BWERREBITE

plant and equipment 6,671 7,288
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T8/~ T2 & 7k 18 # 4 936 1,091
Research and development expenses e (Hib)

(Note b) 10,714 10,864
Net foreign exchange loss (el SEi=Peck- ) 8,088 -
Auditor’s remuneration % SR BN & 588 560
Equity-settled share-based payment AR EE AR N AER 2

ES

Employees other than Directors B8 (EERKRIN) 3,986 -

Consultants = 1,630 -
Total equity-settled share-based payment ARz 4E B AR D A EEE 2

BES:L 5,616 -
Notes: Bt
(@  During the year ended 31 December 2017, no provision @ MREE-_Z—+&+-_A=+—HI1t
of obsolete inventories was provided (2016: approximately FE VTEREREFEREGB (==
RMB24,655,000). — N 4 AR #24,655,0007T ) °
(o)  During the year ended 31 December 2017, included in the b)) REBEEZTZ—tF+-_A=+—H1t
research and development expenses was approximately FE AW ERAIZEIRARLG A

RMB1,558,000 (2016: approximately RMB1,750,000) related to

staff cost.

AR #1,5658,00070 (ZZF—RF: KA

R #4,750,0007T ) °
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mE S AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ A =+—RHIFE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share for years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 respectively were
adjusted for the share consolidation on 10 October 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the computation of
diluted earnings per share for the year assume the exercise of
outstanding share options of the Company since the average
market price was higher than the exercise price of the share
options during 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the diluted earnings
per share was the same as the basic earnings per share
as there were no other potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding.

Earnings 27
Earnings for the purpose of basic and
diluted earnings per share

H) 2 1)

12.

L8 B N K 5H & N T

BREF

R BHERE-T—LER-F—A
FH-ASt-BLETEZSREAR
BoE AT 2 WABET LB 2R
—E—tETAHERTZRAAHT
i

BE_T—tHF+-A=t—HLFE"
AERFEZBREERNBRERARA
WARTTEZBRERETE RAR-F
—tFZ2FETmESNBERETERE-

BE-F—AF+-A=+—ALFE
PR A A L 2 BT S
AR RS AT SR GREAET -

2017
—E—+tf

2016

RMB’000
ARBTT

RMB’000
AR®T

B

3,530 6,124

Weighted average number of ordinary R ETRETN
shares for the purpose of calculating

earnings per shares:

Basic HAK
Diluted e

2016
—E—RF

000

F-Ax
(RESEICS)]
(&&7)

& H & BN 5 8

3,750,000
3,808,192

3,750,000
3,750,000
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mEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 13. EEX - THHARBEREEMS
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(A) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S A EERITHEAZHS
EMOLUMENTS
Details of emoluments paid and payable to the directors FRAMARNTES (BIEITTHAH
of the Company, which include the Chief Executive (MTmas]) ) B RN 2 B
Officer (“CEQ”) for the year are as follows: SHEWAT:

Year ended 31 December 2017
BE-2—tFE+ZA=t—-HALEE
Salaries Retirement
and other  benefit scheme

Fees allowances contributions Total

FeR BRAKER
ok Hf2e ST @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AR%T AR®TR AR®T R

Executive directors: HITES:
Huang Wenji (CEO) BEXE
(7TR#E#) - 517 4 521
Yang Guang o - 200 4 204
Lin Zhenshuang mEE - 190 4 194
Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth &2k (i 155 - - 155
Independent BUFMTES:
non-executive directors:
Lee Kit Ying, Winnie TR (iv) 155 - - 155
Yang Xuetai BER V) 62 - - 62
Tso Sze Wali o4 (vi) 155 - - 155
527 907 12 1,446
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ A =+—RHIFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 13. EE - THARKREEMS &)
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(A) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S A EERTHEIMS (&)

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2016
BE-F—RE+-_A=t-HIEE

Salaries Retirement

and other  benefit scheme

Fees allowances contributions Total
Hek RIKEF

e B=Riuh=3: AR @ar

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETIT ARETT ARBTIT

Executive directors: HTES:
Huang Wenji (CEO) HENE
(1TB#%) - 960 3 963
Chen Jieyou BEE 0] - 385 2 387
Yang Guang o - 180 3 183
Lin Zhenshuang 3=k - 189 3 192
Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth EfRE ) 156 - - 156
Independent BUFRTES:
non-executive directors:
Chan Shiu Kwong, BB
Stephen (il 80 - - 80
Lee Kit Ying, Winnie ZHRE ) 125 - - 125
Yang Xuetai BREX ) 61 - - 61
Tso Sze Wai ER4 (vi) 36 - - 36
458 1,714 11 2,183
No directors or CEO waived or agreed to waive any emoluments HE—_Z—H+EL-_ZE—XKNE+_-A
paid by the Group during the years ended 31 December 2017 =+—BIEE HMEES N TREH
and 2016. No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the WEXFEWERNEE SN2 EAENE -
directors or CEO as an incentive payment to join or upon joining BE—E—t+ER-—TE—XE+—A
the Group or as compensation for loss of office during the years S+ —BIFERE AEE Y E S S

ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. FEMAEERTHBE  EBFZMA

R BRI AR K E &2 BER - S AF
RBEBZ FEE
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mEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 13. EX -THARREEMS (&)
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(A) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S A ESRTHARME (&)

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes: P&t

() Resigned on 2 December 2016. 0] RZE—RNF+ZAZAE-

(i)  Designated as Executive Director on 13 April 2015. iy RZE—HAFNA+=HEZ

ERATES:

(i)  Designated as an independent non-executive director on iy MZFTE—RAFNABEZT

6 August 2015 and resigned on 7 October 2016. BEBIUFNTEETLR_-Z
—RE+HALHEE-

(v)  Designated as an independent non-executive director of vy RZE—RAFNAZ+—HE
the Company on 21 August 2015, EEAERRRIBNIERITES -

(v  Designated as an independent non-executive director of v RZZE—RAF—-—HAZ+=H#%
the Company on 23 January 2015. ZERERRRIBIIIENITES -

(vij  Designated as an independent non-executive director of V) RZZT—A"FTALHEZHE
the Company on 7 October 2016. RARNBEIIERITES -

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to or for the AHITESYNRARESY N2

executive directors are generally emoluments paid or receivable e AR EYRERMNEBE BT

in respect of those persons’ other services in connection EHEBANTRENBEATE

with the management of the affairs of the Company and its 775 B B BB TS 1A 1 A sk

subsidiaries. ?EZ %%”&Z@M EFZ o

ANNUAL REPORT 2017  {(Q7
20174 F 3§



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE S AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ A =+—RHIFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(B) EMPLOYEE’S EMOLUMENT

All of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
were employees of the Group. The emoluments of the
five individual were as follow:

13. EX THABREEME (&)

B) EEM=
REBBHALYBAEEES -
REBEHFALZHEMT

2017 2016
—EB—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Salaries and other allowances Fre RHEMER 708 675
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R (K18 F| 5t 24 3¢ 16 15
Equity-settled share-based payment DESEEURD A
LA NEN 2,277 -
3,001 690

The emolument was within the following bands:

e T RIATEE :

HKD1,000,000 or below

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no
emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to the
directors, CEO or the five highest paid individuals as
inducements to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office.

14. DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ -HERRZRE

Machinery
and Motor Office  Construction
Buildings equipment vehicles equipment  in progress Total

BF HIERRE AE BAERE HEEE #st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AR®TR ARETE ARETT ARETR

COST B%:
At 1 January 2016 R-E-~"F—H—H 117,928 30,442 2,949 4,529 819 156,667
Additions NE 22,555 69 2,685 209 7,817 33,335
Transfer B 7,698 - - - (7,698) -
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HNEAR (25,702) (716) - (154) (938) 27,510)
Disposals & - - (284) - - (284)
At 31 December 2016 and RZZ—RF+=A
1 January 2017 =T—Bk
“Z—+%—-H8-H 122,479 29,795 5,350 4,584 - 162,208
Additions NE 325 1,231 234 50 - 1,840
Disposals HE - - (1,702) - - (1,702)
At 31 December 2017 N_E—+F 122,804 31,026 3,882 4,634 - 162,346
+=ZA=1+—H
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZiE
At 1 January 2016 RZZ—X"E—Hf—A 23,328 18,419 1,637 3,908 - 47,292
Provided for the year FRBE 4,520 2,406 281 81 - 7,288
Eliminated on disposal of REE—FHEAE
a subsidiary B (895) (76) - (19) - (990)
Eliminated on disposals HER - - (224) - - (024)
At 31 December 2016 and RZZE-~"%+=A
1 January 2017 =t+—Hk
—Z—+%—H—H 26,953 20,749 1,694 3,970 - 53,366
Provided for the year FRBE 4,406 1,811 396 58 - 6,671
Eliminated on disposals B 8 - - (1,243) - - (1,243)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+5F
+-A=+—8H 31,359 22,560 847 4,028 - 58,794
CARRYING AMOUNTS IREE
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+%F
+-A=+—8H 91,445 8,466 3,035 606 - 103,552
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—RF
+-A=+—8H 95,526 9,046 3,656 614 - 108,842
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE S AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ A =+—RHIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continuea)

i) The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:

10% - 25%

10% - 33%

10% - 20%

Over the shorter of term of
the lease or 2.5%

Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles

Office equipment
Buildings

if) As at 31 December 2017, buildings with carrying
amounts of approximately RMB65,351,000 (2016:
RMB68,548,000) have been pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group.

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Prepaid lease payments comprises of leasehold land held
in the PRC under medium-term lease and are analysed for
reporting purposes as follows:

Prepaid lease payments comprises of
leasehold land held in the PRC under
medium-term lease and are

15. % BERRHE (@)

) A B RGREE B RER
RT3t T

EEY T
e
WAZHRM

BF

10%—25%

10% —33%

10% —20%

FHEFSk2.5% -
NBREE A%

i)y RZE—+tF+—A=+—H kK
HE4L A AR 65,351,0007T (=
T —RF: AR #68,548,0007T)
ZEFERBEAREBERIRE
TREZER-

16. FA{HERE
ENEEREAENPRRERHAE
BEEZHEE T WHERE B MO
—F :

2017 2016

—E— L F —E—RF

RMB’000
ARET T

RMB’000
ARBTT

BENHEEFEBERT
REFHEEREZ
HE+T W ARE B K

analysed for reporting purposes as follows: #7407
Non-current asset FERBEE 35,403 36,339
Current asset MEEE 936 936
36,339 37,275
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (continued) 16. FAFNHEERE (&)
As at 31 December 2017, leasehold land with carrying RZE—+tHF+_A=+—H KHEE
amounts of approximately RMB31,463,000 (2016: )5 AR #E31,463,0007T ( —F— RN 4F:
RMB32,262,000) have been pledged to secure banking AR #32,262,00070) 2 & T # B 3K
facilities granted to the Group. HIERREEERRITHE ZER.
PROMISSORY NOTE RECEIVABLES 17. ARLEBERWRIE
During the year ended 31 December 2016, refer to the note HEZ—RFTA=T—HLEFE"
32 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group has AR & B S R MY sE82fT il - REEE
disposed of the entire equity interest of [ 1BK ¥ H R PEINRBEERREBRARA 2 IARE
/A A) which was satisfied by a promissory note issued by the LA 5 TR A H RBET -
purchaser.
The principal amount of the promissory note was HH E BN AR ¢ % R A R %34,800,000
RMB34,800,000 and the fair value of the promissory note at T R R EER VB REREN QA FEELY
initial recognition was approximately RMB28,700,000. The A AR ¥28,700,0007T - B HA A & 8 &
maturity date is 2 years from the issue date of promissory note. HEBEZTHRRF AN ERIRHE
The promissory note was measured at amortised cost with an ARG E BEREMER1013% - R =
effective interest rate of 10.13%. As at 31 December 2017, T—t+F T+ A=T—H ELEEH
the carrying amount of the promissory note was approximately REEOAARKS1,616,000T (= F
RMB31,616,000 (2016: RMB28,708,000). — N AR #28,708,0007T) ©
INVENTORIES 18. F&
2017 2016
—E—tF T — N
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTT
Raw materials JR# ¥ 147,286 127,986
Work-in-progress & m 23,302 19,090
Finished goods 2URK 34,244 33,000
204,832 180,076
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ A =+—RHIFE

19. ESEWFIE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables B 5 WA

2017 2016
—=—+tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT

154,350 105,679

The Group generally allows a credit period of 30 — 150 days
to its trade customers. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated the respective revenue
recognition dates.

AEEREESEEFREZEER R
AB30E150R - AEBWEGEZZE
e SR CIE W

TH AR HREHRR (AR KEERA
B R BHREARN25 28 HRKER
T FRER DA

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARET T

0 to 90 days 0£90H 103,116 79,978
91 to 180 days 912180H 51,234 25,701
154,350 105,679

The Group has individually assessed all receivables. No
impairment losses were recognised during the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016.

At 31 December 2017, the aged analysis of trade receivables
that was past due (i.e. over the credit period) but not impaired
are as follows:

Over the credit period HBiBEE
1 to 90 days 1£290H

AEEEERFEEEREKREBE-EHE
—E—tFRERFTA=1+—
BILFE BERIARERSE-

R-_ZE—+F+_A=1+—H 2@t
(BNBBEEH)ERREZE HERK
HZBREDTMT

2017 2016
—EF-tF —TRF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT

51,234 25,701
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group
considers any change in credit quality of the trade receivables
from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting
date. In view of the good settlement history from those
receivables of the Group which are past due but not impaired,
the directors of the Company consider that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances.

The Group’s trade receivables that are denominated in
currency other than the functional currency of the relevant
Group entities are as follows:

19.

ERN T E S NE P

HEEE 5 R Z AT el 1 AR
SEEEERVIELEEZAHES
BEARALESRUFBZEELR

ABEZEEFBBEBELERL
BARBEEAR/ERTRLFHERIED
BB

AEBUABESEERIENEREEE
2B B REYGIRT -

uUsh
JPY Ht

16,998
492,638

8,923
682,405

20. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

20.

FAA FRIR K H At FE W R IR

2017 2016

—E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AERETIT
Other receivables H fih fE W Fk08 848 552
Value-added tax receivables JE Us 12 B FR 33,866 24,492
Prepayments TEfT 5RE 24,314 56,841
59,028 81,885

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

RERE E L L F AR A A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ A =+—RHIFE

21,

PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The bank balances and cash comprise of cash held by the
Group. The bank balances for the year ended 31 December
2017 carried interest at the prevailing market rate 0.30% (2016:
0.30%) per annum. The pledged deposits carried fixed interest
rate of 1.35% (2016: 1.30%) per annum during the year ended
31 December 2017.

The Group’s pledged deposits and bank balances and
cash denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB89,017,000 (2016: RMB164,525,000) as at 31 December
2017. Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

The Group’s pledged deposits, short-term bank deposits and
bank balances and cash that are denominated in currency
other than the functional currency of the relevant Group entities
are as follows:

USD eV
JPY AT
HKD BT

21,

EEAERRBITERERRS

BTEB LA CRREAEEREZH
- HE-_Z—ttF+-A=+—8HL
FE - RITHEBIRBITMSFFE0.30%

ZE—RNF:030%)FTE-HEE
—+tF+ZA=+—BIFE BEF
FRIREEFFE1.35% (ZT—/NF:
1.30% ) 5T B o

MN-E—+FE+_A=+—H A&EHE
AR B B ERBERRIRTEH
LKIREH A ARES9,017,000T (= F
—NEF AR#164,525,0000T) - AR
B H I RINE A R B CHNEE IR G
R (EE-SERMESERE) AT

v
BEE-

AEBABESEERIENEEEE
ZEERFER EHRTERRRITE
PREIREIAT

2017 2016
ZE—tF :

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARBTT

- 35

- 115,015

998 4,650

22. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

2. ESRNRERENRE

2017 2016

—E— L F —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T ARETIT

Trade payables B SN FIE 11,169 15,485
Bills payables BT RE 57,380 85,067
68,549 100,552
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23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued) 2 BZEGRERENEE &)
An aged analysis of trade and bills payables presented based RBERRLEERREI 2B FEN
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as HERENEREZREROTOT
follows:

2017 2016
—g—tf C—EFAF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

0 to 90 days 0£290H 33,485 71,252
91 to 180 days 91£180H 33,824 28,342
181 to 365 days 181%365H 1,240 958
68,549 100,552
The credit period on purchase of goods ranged from 30 days BEERZEEBNFI0H£1208 ¢
to 120 days. The Group has financial risk management policies N6 B Bt L JE 5P BRI 2 {5 B AR Il E B
or plans for its payables with respect to the credit timeframe. R B BUR kA&
ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. EFFERARHEMEMNRKIE

2017 2016
—g—tfF C—EFAF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

Receipt in advance (Note) TEM R (B =E) 189 1,269
Other payables H e IR 2,666 3,493
Accrued expenses FERTRISZ 5,731 4,544
8,586 9,306
Note: B ET -
Receipt in advance represented advance payments relating to sale TBWRIEREEBIEESOMEP I ZE
of goods received from customers pursuant to the respective sales e SR TERFIE
contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - T —+F+ A =+—HIFE

24,

PROVISION FOR LITIGATION

Mr. Yao Da San (“Mr.Yao”) filed a claim through Fujian Province
Zhangzhou Zhangpu People’s Court against to an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, Jinjiang Jicheng
Industry Co., Ltd. (“Jinjiang Jicheng”) for the outstanding
subcontracting fee (“Litigation”). The provision for litigation with
amount approximately RMB1,001,000 was made during the
year ended 31 December 2016, including the compensation
of approximately RMB950,000, mediation cost of Fujian
Province Zhangzhou Zhangpu People’s court of approximately
RMB26,000 and legal professional fee of approximately
RMB25,000.

On 11 January 2017, deposit of approximately RMB1,039,000
was set aside as a guarantee deposit by Fujian Province
Zhangzhou Zhangpu People’s Court (“Deposit”).

On 13 March 2017, with the effort of Fujian Province
Zhangzhou Zhangpu People’s Court, both parties agreed
to reconcile on Litigation. Jinjiang Jicheng agreed to make
one-off payment with an amount approximately RMB950,000
to Mr.Yao as damage with condition that Mr.Yao will not pursue
further actions regarding the Litigation for remaining balances.

The case was fully settled in March 2017 by the Deposit
according to rulings for enforcement issued by Fujian Province
Zhangzhou Zhangpu People’s Court.
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By i

ShE=Z A (ML) BBRRESEE
MTERFEARERAALEBEZEEZE
WBRARIBEIEKETERAR (&
TEM]) BRARGDBEER ([5FR]) -
REBEZE-_ZT—RF+_A=+—HItF
[EETIREF AR 40 A R 1,001,0007T
Heh B E B E S 9 A RM950,0000T - &
BEENTEREARERAMBREL A
R¥26,000L REZREXEEBRHARK
25,0007T °

R-ZZE—+F—A+—HB HARE
1,039,000t ML & HBEE EMHE
HHRARERMBIEARES ([RE
) e

KEREBENMERFAREARALE
EHE - T—+FE= A+ =BERMER
WE- B ITIEKREREEE — XX
FIBEEEH AR EI50,0007T  MEA
TR0 ke RS IR E R RSB IR R
— B ERARREF]

RIFREZE MM HHE AR AR R
ZERWTS RHEBCBREER
“E—LF=AEHEMBR-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

25. BANK BORROWINGS 25. SRITER

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

Secured, repayable within one year BT AR B REHRE
from the end of the reporting period —FREERE 163,480 172,451
The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is BB EBFEABE HERENT:
as follows:

Bank borrowings

SRITMER
RMB’'000
ARET T
As of 31 December 2016 HE-_T—R"E+-A=1—H 172,451
Repayment of bank loans EBIRITER (172,611)
New bank loans IRTTE R 163,640
As of 31 December 2017 BHE_T—tF+-A=t+—H 163,480
Notes: B 5E
i) As at 31 December 2017, all bank borrowings carried fixed i) RZE—+F+=ZA=+—H 2
rates of interest from 4.62% to 5.75% per annum (2016: 4.57% SRITHEFIZN T4.62% £5.75% (= F
to0 5.98% per annum) and were due within 1 year. — N 1 4.57% £5.98% ) 2 [E TE F 7
K BIWR—FAEE-
i) The Group’s bank borrowings at the end of each reporting i) AEBMPEREEHRZRITEREMN
period were secured by the followings: TEIBER:
a) As at 31 December 2017, all bank borrowings were a) RZE—tF+=ZA=+—H"
secured by the Group’s follow assets: EHRITENBAEAEEUTE
ERER:
2017 2016
—E—tE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFIT
Leasehold land and building HELHREF 96,814 100,810
Bank deposits RITTF K 23,101 31,274
Total AFr 119,915 132,084
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - T —+F+ A =+—HIFE

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. BRA
Number of shares Nominal value of ordinary shares
RHEE TERZEE
HK$'000 RMB’000
FET ARETIL
Authorised: EE:
At 1 January 2016, ordinary RZE—RF
shares of HK$0.0004 each —B—B -SRAEE
0.0004/8 T 2 iR 25,000,000,000 10,000
Effect of share subdivisionto %7 # 41 = &% E {£0.00008
HK$0.00008 each (Note a) B2 (HiEa) 100,000,000,000 -
At 31 December 2016, and RZE—R"F+-ZA=+—H
1 January 2017 ordinary e e E =
shares of HK$0.00008 each X E{E0.00008B T2
TmR 125,000,000,000 10,000
Effect of share consolidation BROAHEFREE
to HK$0.0016 each (Note b) 0.0016F L2 &2 (MiFb) (118,750,000,000) - -
At 31 December 2017, ordinary B -ZT—+F+_FA
shares of HK$0.0016 each =t+—B SK@EAE
0.0016/8 0.2 L@ 6,250,000,000 10,000 -
Issued and fully paid: BRETRHRE:
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—X"FE—A—H 15,000,000,000 6,000 4,731
Effect of share subdivision WAz FE (Hta)
(Note a) 60,000,000,000 - -
At 31 December 2016 and —E—RF
1 January 2017 +_ﬂf+ 5]
k-E—+F—-A—H 75,000,000,000 6,000 4,731
Effect of share Consolidation BBz E
(Note b) (MI5ED) (71,250,000,000) - -
At 31 December 2017 R-T—+4F
—R=+— 3,750,000,000 6,000 4,731
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(@)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 25 April 2016, a share subdivision was
approved with effect from 26 April 2016 in which every one (1)
share issued and unissued ordinary share of HK$0.0004 each
in the share capital of the Company was subdivided into five
(6) subdivided shares having a par value of HK$0.00008 per
subdivided share (“Share Subdivision”). Immediately after the
Share Subdivision, the number of the authorised share capital
of the Company was divided into 125,000,000,000 subdivided
shares, of which 75,000,000,000 subdivided shares were issued
and fully paid. Details of the Share Subdivision are disclosed in
the circular of the Company dated 8 April 2016.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 9 October 2017, a share consolidation
was approved with effect from 10 October 2017 in which
every twenty (20) share issued and unissued ordinary share of
HK$0.00008 each in the share capital of the Company was
consolidated into one (1) consolidated share having a par value
of HK$0.0016 per consolidated share (“Share Consolidation”).
Immediately after the Share Consolidation, the number of the
authorised share capital of the Company was consolidated into
6,250,000,000 consolidated shares, of which 3,750,000,000
consolidated shares were issued and fully paid. Details of
the Share Consolidation are disclosed in the circular of the
Company dated 14 September 2017.

All shares issued during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016
rank pari passu with existing shares in all respects.

26. WA (&)
GEE
@ BEARABRIR-E—XEDA

ZHRBRTZARBREFIKX
CLrEBZEERER ROFAR
HE B —"FEONA-F+/ A
GBI ARRBRAFE— (1)K
M {B0.0004# T 2 B 8 IT R A BT E
AR IF 48 & A (5) Ik = AR M {E0.00008
B ZFRARGD (TRGHIFAE]) B
BERR D IFME ARBZATERAS
#125,000,000,000% 37 40 f% 15+ H
75,000,000,0000% #f 48 A% 15 4% 2 %17
REBRBRA-BHARMIFAZFABR
AABABAEZT—NFNANAZ
KRR

BEARATRER-_ZE—+F+AN
ARTZARARRENAS BB
ZEBAER BROEHEIE 5=
T—tF+ATHEERER Bt AR
A) B% 7K AR 3 — + (20) A% 1 {E0.0000878
TLZBETEARBITEBREHE—
(1) B & I E {50.0016/8 7T 2 A B % (5
([BEHEH]) - BERMHEHE AQ
A) 25 E B A& B 56,250,000,0008%
A BERE 15+ E #13,750,000,0008% & HF
BHEEBITREBERE - BEAKRG
EHZHBRARAIBBHAZZT—t
FNATMBZBEAEE-

REBEE-_Z—+t&FE_T—XF+_-A
=+ HLEFEZHBERITRMNESIE
BIRF R 2 EFIAER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR

217.

U B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE - &

RESERVES
STATUTORY RESERVE

The statutory reserve fund is non-distributable and the transfer
to this reserve is determined by the board of directors in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.
This reserve can be used to offset accumulated losses and
increase capital upon approval from the relevant government
authorities.

MERGER RESERVE

As at 1 January 2013, merger reserve represented the
difference between share capital of the new holding Company
and the aggregate of the share capital of the then holding
company of the Group and the companies comprising the
Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, Fujian Jicheng
acquired 17.96% of equity interests in Jinjiang Jicheng from
a related entity at total consideration of RMB3,700,000.
The amount of RMB2,590,000 was paid to the Controlling
Shareholder and the amount of RMB1,110,000 was paid to
the non-controlling shareholders. As a result, the acquisition
was considered as acquisition of 5.388% of indirect equity
interest in Jinjiang Jicheng from non-controlling shareholders
and acquisition of 12.572% indirect equity interests in Jinjiang
Jicheng from the Controlling Shareholder for business
combination under common control. For business under
common control purpose, the 12.572% indirect equity interests
in Jinjlang Jicheng held by the Controlling Shareholder had
been consolidated from the earliest date presented when
Jinjiang Jicheng first came under the common control of the
Controlling Shareholder before the acquisition.

As part of the Reorganisation, Jicheng HK agreed to acquire
100% and 82.04% of then resulting the registered capital of
Fujian Jicheng and Jinjiang Jicheng respectively and gained
control of them. RMB80,396,000 was recognised in merger
reserve representing the reserve arising pursuant to the
Reorganisation.
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—tF+A=+—HLFE
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EEME

EERBE NSO A REEAZ
HHEBEABETERETEMEBERZR
ARRE-BBBERBFE RILER:
ZIARE R B R B R RIEME
Ko

RG]
R-E—=F—A—R &0REEREN

‘}

BERARZIRABRNEEE R ZIERA
AIRAREEET AR ZEAREZHEZ
B

Pt 2
i1

HE-_Z—HWF+=-_A=+—81L
FE BESEKRNBEEERBRBET
EX17.96% 2Bl BREABARE
3,700,000t » A R #2,590,0007T ¥ 1 F
=R AR R & A R #1,110,0007T 2 1+ F
JEERR AR R o bt L AL RE ) 2
BEOmE W SIEWAR AR IEER
% 5 UK BB B T 5 5k5.888% 2 [ & AR i
o e P IR A R BE BT 52 Ak 12.572% 2
MERE R RRESNZEBMS
AR AR R T I B T EA12.572% v i
AEHEFE BT SRR A UK BB B B X 2 IR AR
REAREHKBEEY & F A RS
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e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

28. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

On 3 Novmember 2017, 360,000,000 share options were
granted to the Company’s employees and consultants at a
consideration of HK$1 per each grantee under the Company’s
share option scheme (no share options were granted during
the year ended 31 December 2016). Each option gives the
holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of the
Company. These share options are exercisable since the date
of grant and the exercise period will expire within one year
from the date of acceptance (i.e. 3 November 2017). The
exercise price is HK$0.097. No options were exercised during
year (2016: Nil).

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
Director’s Report on pages 50 to 52.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2017 had an
exercise price HK$0.097 and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 0.8 years.

The fair value per share option granted during the year 2017
estimated at the date of grant using The Black-Scholes pricing
model was HK$0.0183. The assumptions used are as follows:

Fair value at measurement date HK$0.0183
Share price HK$0.097
Exercise price HK$0.097
Expected volatility 298%
Option life 1 year
Dividend yield 0%
Risk-free interest rate 0.88%

The expected volatility was based on statistical analysis of
daily share average prices of group of listed companies in
the similar industry over the one year immediately preceding
the grant date, adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility based on publicly available information. Dividend yield
was estimated based on the dividend policy of the Group.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate. There were no market conditions
associated with the share option grants.

28.

URESEEURDA/AER 2R S

RZZE—+tF+—A=ZHB AQAR
BEEREFIIZERAR BT
RERE R 8 & F M 1H360,000,000
NERE ( RBEE_-_ZT—X<E+_-A
—t+—ALttFEMERTERE) -3
MDIBRER THB ARFNRBEAAR—
REEB -ZEEREERL AR
FIIE - MITEHBR EZE R B (A
—E—+F+—AZH)E—FREm-
1T1E (B B0.09778 T o F A I 4 B8 A% i
BETE (T —RFE ) -

ARREEREGEFHBENESTERE
SE50H E52H ©

RF—LF A=+ — B HRTE
2 B I HE 217 (2 (B /80,0078 7T K f0
T8 T A 194 8 /50.8% -

R-ZE—tFERHZEBHEREZATF
B B BI3E A Black-Scholes FE (B 18
K5 50.0183%8 T FTER A 2 &% 1A
—|T :

RETEHZAFE  0.0183%87T
B& (= 0.0978 7t
TR E 0.09778 7T
TE H R 18 298%

B A% % 4F B 14

A% B e = 0%

42 | gz 1) = 0.88%

BHREENSERRL AR —FA
—MHBOTTE L AR BYREZ R
AT R RFE R R HOK R 2 TR &
PEHHE - RERSEETENRAEER
EHREE - TB2HBRZ2ELARE
SHRFEZEEAEARE -TRHE
i R A R B 5
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - T —+F+ A =+—HIFE

28.

29.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

(continueq)

The equity-settled share-based payments charged to the profit
or loss was RMB5,616,000 for the year ended 31 December
2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no share option
was exercised.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no share option
was exercised, and upon the expiry of exercise period, all
outstanding share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme had been lapsed accordingly.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Other than the remuneration paid to the directors and
employees of the Group as set out in note 13, who are
considered as the key management personnel of the Group,
the Group did not have any other significant compensations to
key management personnel.

The remuneration of the directors and key management
personnel is determined by the board of directors of the
Company having regards to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

122 CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED

PESERIERAR AR

28.

29.

URESEEURDAER ZXS
(#&)

BE-TtH+-A=1+—RLFE"
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION FOR THE 30. AATZEMBERREK
COMPANY

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET R ARBTT

Non-current assets ERENEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZIKE 243,618 260,704
Current assets MBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR B8 B H A E YR 425 1,219
Amount due from a subsidiary FEUY — FEI B B8 2 B 3 IE 117,240 125,523
Bank balance and cash IRITEBR MRS 138 144
117,803 126,886
Current liabilities nEaE
Accrued expenses and other payables FEET B A I H A 5O 1,289 1,143
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASHBfY /8B~ R FR0A 16,561 14,487
17,850 15,630
Net current assets MEEEFE 99,953 111,256
Net assets BEFE 343,571 371,960
Capital and reserves BEAR N
Share capital A A 4,731 4,731
Reserves i 338,840 367,229
Total equity Emiasa 343,571 371,960
The Company’s statement of financial position was approved KRB BRAREBREETER S
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March —NFZAZ+ N\ B AR FIZ -
2018 and are signed on its behalf by: BIUATRERE
Huang Weniji Yang Guang
BEXE Bk
Director Director
= EE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ A =+—RHIFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION FOR THE 300 XATZEMBEARREK &)
COMPANY (continued)
MOVEMENT IN COMPANY’S RESERVES AKATHEERE

Translation ~ Share option Accumulated
Share capital ~ Share premium reserve reserve  Merger reserve losses Total
RA& B3 EE Eiiffs BRERE AHHRE githE &zt

RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000
ARBTTE ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARET:R

(Note)
(W)
At 1 January 2016 W=%-~%-A-H 4,731 116,740 20,991 36,004 229,897 (56,536) 361,827
Lapsed of share options BERELY - - - (36,004) - 36,004 -
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (3,571) (3,571)
Exchange different on translation of BENBRREZIERELRL
financial statement to presentation curency R EE - - 23,704 - - - 23,704

At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017~ R-ZE—-AE+-A=+-HR

—Z—+%-f-H 4731 116,740 44,695 - 229,897 (24,103 371,960

Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (9,764) (9,764)
Exchange differences on translation of REGBRRERIERELL

financial statement to presentation curency ~ EREE - - (24,241) - - - (24,241)
Recognition of equity-settles share based BANEREENRNAERZ

payment i3 - - - 5616 - - 5616

4,731 116,740 20,454 5,616 229,897 (33,867) 343,571
Note: Merger reserve represents the difference between the nominal Mizk: e EERERNEERB AT 8T
value of the shares issued for acquisition of its subsidiaries and mz mEEENE QTN IE B S
the net asset value of its subsidiaries at the date of acquisition. CEEFBECER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ A=+ —HIFE

31. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY K] NN N A=
The details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are set RZE—tF+_A=1T—H WEBA
out as follows: AlZFBEHINET
Place and date of Issued and fully paid share Percentage of equity interest/voting
Name of subsidiaries incorporation/establishment  capital/registered capital power attributable to the Company  Principal activities
T/ ERTRAR
i) PR B3 56 A 5 BRA&/EHEE EAREERE REEBAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
BE &
Jicheng Umbrella Holding Limited  British Virgins Islands Ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
(“Jicheng BVI") 13 June 2014 UsD1
Jicheng Umbrella Holding Limited ~ EEE X E S LER 100% - REER
(Tdicheng BVI|) —E-mERA+T=A 1ER
Jicheng Umbrella Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100% Investment holding
Company Limited (“Jicheng HK”) 30 June 2014 HKD1
ERREFEERAA B Limk - 100%  REZR
(T&KER]) ZZ-WUERA=TH 1B
HK Baohui Industry Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100%  Dormant
9 May 2017 HKD20,000
EHEREEERAA & LER - 100%  EEA%
—T—tFRANA 20,0007 7T
Zenith Century Limited British Virgins Islands Ordinary shares 100% - Dormant
13 February 2015 USD100
Zenith Century Limited REELHE LAk 100% - HEEE
“Z-RFZATZH  100ER
Fujian Jicheng Umbrella Co., Ltd.  The PRC Paid-in capital - 100%  Manufacturing and
(BEEREZBRAF) 24 December 2004 HKD180,000,000 sales of umbrella
(Notes (a) and (b))
BRENEEERAA e ERER - 100% RERHERDR
(i) R (o) “ZEIME 180,000,000 7.
+TZAZt+mE
Jinjiang Jicheng Industry Co., Ltd.  The PRC Paid-in capital - 100%  Manufacturing and
(BTERETAERAR) 13 May 1996 RMB20,595,500 sales of umbrella
(Notes (a) and (b))
EISEKETIARAR FE ERER - 100%  BHEREERS
(BizE(a) R (b)) “WAAFRAT=A  ARK20,595,500m
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during RZE—+tER - NFHEERZ
and at the end of 2017 and 2016. Tt FRIT-RFFR BEWNSB
NEIEITEMNEEES -
All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in their i LB AR EZERFEES A it
respective place of incorporation/establishment. BB ST i B AR o
Notes: B 5 -
(@)  The entity is wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the (@ ZEBARFPENIZINEBEERSE-
PRC.
(o)  The English translation of the company names is for reference ) AREWBHRNBEHEHDEZ -ZF
only. The official names of these companies are in Chinese. NAERER BB AR XL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE - &

32.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY OF THE COMPANY

On 30 December 2016, the Group disposed entire equity
interest in IUEREXREZEHFRAF (“Shandong Hengmao”)
to an independent third party (the “Purchaser”). The Group in
return obtained a promissory note with the aggregate principal
amount of RMB34,800,000 which were receivable 2 years
from 30 December 2016, issued by the Purchaser. The fair
value of the promissory note was determined at approximately
RMB28,700,000 at the date of initial recognition, based on an
independent valuation carried out by an independent external

—tF+A=+—HLFE

32. HEAXQT—HKERQF
R-ZE-RE+-A=+tH A&ERA
—EZBUE=H ([EFHELRE

EREFRAF([LEREXR])N2E
- ERRR AEBERBE ST
A& B A A RE34,800,0007T &
REZZE—A"F+_A=+HEMF
WER 8 3 L R IE o AR IR B AL IMNEE A
BEMETZBLAE RLZEERY
WHERBHZATFEEEANDARE

professional valuer. 28,700,0007T °

WERERNHE RN EERAGBN T

The assets and liabilities of the Shandong Hengmao as at the
date of disposal were as follows:

2016

—EB—RE

RMB’000

ARET T

Property, plant and equipment M W E R 26,520
Prepaid leases payment AN E KB 7,433
Other receivables and prepayments H b e W sk B R B 5ROB 322
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 107
Inventories FE 52
Accrual expenses and other payables FEET B A & H At I 5B (228)
Net assets disposed of BHREEEFE 34,206

Consideration of disposal REZRE

Promissory note A HE 28,700
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary* HE—EHBAANEE" (5,506)
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32. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY OF THE COMPANY 32. HEAXRQT—HEKWBAR (&)
(continued)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of disposal is as FHLENREREDTEOT
follows:

2016
S

RMB’000
ARBTT

Cash and cash equivalents disposed BHERERAEEEY 107

Net cash outflow of cash and

cash equivalents RekBLEEBYHRSRLFE 107
* For illustration purpose only should the results on the disposal of * EHRFARE WESLREK ZE
Shangong Hengmao calculate based on the principal amount of RIOBEEAZBRBZRASBARE
the promissory note of RMB34,800,000, the Group will record 34,800,000 05 & - BIIAREE #5815 H
a gain on disposal of Shangdong Hengmao of approximately EIREX 2 W=D A RES594,000
RMB594,000. JCe
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
L2

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of our A FNEHFIAEER AEST B FENELE UKL
Group for the five financial years, as extracted from the published ZBEREBEHME NHEEFACDTIENKER
audited financial statements, is set out below. B ISR 5% o

For the year ended 31 December
BEt-HA=t—HLEE
2017 2016 2015 2013

s T—-XF ZT-hfF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

Results ES5
Revenue g 538,264 603,985 657,667 602,516 483,615
Gross Profit EF 80,938 73,812 147,203 161,043 119,392
Profit before taxation BB AR A 6,705 13,514 50,033 102,498 80,012
Profit for the year FRmF 3,530 6,124 25,229 74,159 59,755
Profit for the year attributable to:  JA T~ & B fE (L F
R Al
Owner of the Company RAAEE A 3,530 6,124 25,229 73,168 57,631
Non-controlling interests IR - - - 991 2,124

At 31 December
R+t=-HA=+—~H
2017 2016 2015 2014

—E—tf —ZT—RH 3 —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARBTT

Assets and liabilities EERERE

Non-current assets HERBEE 138,955 173,889 154,141 125,014 115,673
Current assets TEEE 542,246 539,403 483,255 351,445 385,928
Current liabilities mEAE 240,615 282,309 212,236 236,219 279,439
Net current assets TBEEFE 301,631 257,094 271,019 115,226 106,489
Net assets EEFE 440,586 430,983 425,160 240,240 222,162
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